
Jenny Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Fax : Bideford (01237) 479164

Date: 5 May 2017

TO:  THE CHAIR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE TORRIDGE 
DISTRICT COUNCIL

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL
TOWN HALL - BRIDGE STREET, BIDEFORD, EX39 2HS 

ON Monday 15 May 2017 at 6.30 pm

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the
aforementioned date and time

Head of Paid Service

P R A Y E R S 
For those who wish to participate - Prayers will be held at 6.25 pm.

A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting

2.  ELECTION OF CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL 

3.  ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL 

4.  MINUTES (PAGES 5 - 20)
Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council (Budget Special) held on 27 
February 2017.

Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 6 March 2017.



- 2 -

5.  PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 
15 minute period for public contributions

6.  TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

7.  TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

8.  ELECTION OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

9.  ELECTION OF DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

10.  SIZE OF COMMITTEES AND TERMS OF REFERENCE (PAGES 21 - 34)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor.

11.  ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS (PAGES 35 - 36)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor.

12.  MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES (PAGES 37 - 39)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor.

13.  ELECTION OF CHAIRS AND VICE CHAIRS 
Community and Resources Committee

Audit and Governance Committee

Plans Committee

Licensing Committee

Internal Overview and Scrutiny Committee

External Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Standards Committee

14.  SCHEME OF DELEGATION (PAGES 40 - 68)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor.

15.  SUBSTITUTION SCHEME (PAGES 69 - 71)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor.

16.  MEMBERSHIP OF OUTSIDE BODIES (PAGES 72 - 75)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor.



- 3 -

17.  LEAD MEMBERS (PAGES 76 - 77)
To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service.

18.  WELCOMBE PARISH NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA DESIGNATION (PAGES 78 - 85)
To receive the report of the Planning Manager.

19.  EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - ANNUAL REPORT (PAGES 
86 - 91)

20.  PETITIONS 
To receive Petitions (if any)

21.  NOTICES OF MOTION 

Written Notice of Motion from Councillors Watson, Hackett and James

With the Northern Devon Healthcare Trust announcing the temporary closure of in 
patient beds in Holsworthy Hospital in March, the Council is asked to support the 
endeavours of Councillors Peter Watson, Philip Hackett and Ken James who have 
been involved in holding regular meetings with the Trust since the publication of the 
consultation document regarding Care Closer to Home in the Autumn 2015. The 
councillors are keen to have recognised that Holsworthy Hospital is for a much wider 
community than just the residents of the town itself, and by working together with a 
holistic approach the best patient care outcomes can be achieved.

As the in patient beds in Holsworthy Hospital have currently been withdrawn, they 
appreciate that a "different conversation" is needed with the Trust as a confrontational 
approach is not going to achieve the best provision of healthcare to local residents. 
For this reason the three councillors wish to reach out to local Town and Parish 
Councils and other representative partners which depend on the services of 
Holsworthy Hospital, and invite them to become part of a forum led by the District 
Councillors which will continue the dialogue with the Trust in the future.

This dialogue has in the past included holding regular meetings with the Chief 
Executive, Alison Diamond and her team, in addition to attending NHS AGM meetings 
and other consultation meetings with stakeholders throughout the area of Devon. As 
the District Councillors have worked on this issue since the future of in patient 
services was called in to question, and also represent a large rural area surrounding 
Holsworthy town, which greatly depends upon an integrated provision of both in 
patient and domiciliary care, they have accrued evidence from both healthcare 
professionals (including doctors) and local residents, which they can present in their 
dialogue with the Trust. 

With the support of this motion, the councillors wish to both lead, draw together, and 
include all sections of the community in order that they can achieve the best possible 
appropriate care for patients under the Care Closer to Home policy and, if possible, 
restore the in patient beds to Holsworthy Hospital.



- 4 -

22.  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
The Chair to move:

“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972”

23.  PART II  -  (CLOSED SESSION) 
Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed.

Meeting Organiser:  Democratic Services Tel. 01237 428703



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Town Hall, Bideford

Monday, 27 February 2017 - 6.30 pm

PRESENT: Councillor M Langmead (Chair)
Councillor J Himan (Vice-Chair)

Councillors A Boyle, D Brenton, M Brown, K Carroll, R Darch, 
K Davis, G Dezart, A Eastman, Z Gregorek, P Hackett, R Hicks, 
D Hurley, T Inch, S Inch, K James, T Johns, R Julian, J Langton-
Lockton, P Le Maistre, R Lock, D McGeough, J Morrish, I Parker, 
P Pennington, S Robinson, C Simmons and R Wiseman

ALSO PRESENT: J Wallace, Head of Paid Service
S Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources)
J Hollis, Senior Solicitor
D Heyes, Finance Manager
S Kearney, Commercial & Leisure Services Manager
J Jarroudi, Community Engagement Officer
H Roper, Service Improvement Officer
S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer
T Vanstone, Democratic Services Officer

Mr I Harper, Independent Member

76.   APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Christie, Watson, Whittaker, 
Boundy, Hancock, Whittle and Dart.

77.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

There were no public contributions.

78.   TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

With the permission of the Chair, the Head of Paid Service brought to the attention 
of Members an issue with regard to the skateboard park in Bideford.

Following an inspection by engineers a decision had been made to close the 
skateboard park as from 28 February.  An inspection report had established  that 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2

the equipment at the park had corroded and was therefore a health and safety 
issue.

Contractors plan to install a temporary ramp on the same site which will then be 
incorporated into a new scheme.    The park will be closed for a short period of time 
while the old equipment is removed and the temporary equipment installed.  Longer 
term plans for the park will be designed around the responses received during the 
consultation which is already being held.  The new park to be implemented in 
2018/19.

79.   TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

There were no questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9.

80.   NEW HOMES BONUS PROTOCOL 

The Community Engagement Officer presented this item, which he explained had 
previously been submitted to Community & Resources Committee and Internal 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Members were informed that at the Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
meeting  there had been a split decision when voting on whether one signatory or 
multiple signatories be required to sign applications prior to submission.   It was 
recommended that the matter be referred to Full Council.

It was proposed by Councillor A Inch, seconded by Councillor Morrish that the New 
Homes Bonus applications be signed by any one Ward Member where a project is 
to be delivered.

(Vote:  For 12, Against 17)

The motion was lost.

It was proposed by Councillor Simmons, seconded by Councillor Davis and –

Resolved:

That the New Homes Bonus applications be signed by all Members in a Ward 
where a project is to be delivered.

(Vote:  For 17, Against 12)

81.   BUDGET 2017/18, MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 2017/18 - 2021/22 

Prior to the commencement of the meeting, the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
circulated to the meeting a document detailing council tax proposals for 2017/18 
outlining the council tax payable by parish and council tax bands.

Page 6



3

Members were informed that the purpose of the report was to present the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) indicating the possible extent of the budget and 
funding shortfall that the Council will face in the future.   This would identify the 
extent of service changes needed to be made in order to achieve a balanced 
budget in each financial year.

When referring to the Torridge Provisional Finance Settlement 2017/18, the 
Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed  this had gone through Parliament the 
previous week and therefore the figures stated in the report were the figures for 
2017/18.

Business Rates Retention Scheme – due to the challenging increase in Business 
Rates being faced by many local businesses (very nearly 300) in Torridge following 
the valuation exercise, Members at the Community & Resources Committee 
meeting suggested that a meeting be held with Geoffrey Cox MP.   The Leader of 
the Council and the Strategic Manager (Resources) met with Geoffrey Cox MP and 
outlined to him the impact that this will have on the Businesses within Torridge.   
There are winners and losers across the District and the MP agreed that he would 
do what he could to emphasise the potential impact this could have on local 
businesses.  One area, which was easier to target is the fact that the Rural Rate 
Relief thresholds have not been increased

A detailed report of the overall position was given

Members were advised of the following amendment to recommendation 18b) in the 
report:

“That £0.400m is transferred FROM the Transition in …………” and not to.

During the discussions reference was made to the Holsworthy Agri-Estate 
Infrastructure.    Councillor Morrish declared a prejudicial interest and left the room.   
He took no part in the discussion.   Following a brief discussion Councillor Morrish 
returned to the meeting.

During the presentation a number of questions were asked by Members and duly 
answered by the Strategic Manager (Resources).

Members were reminded that a recorded vote was required.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor S Inch that 
recommendations a) – j), subject to the amendment to recommendation b), be 
taken en bloc and approved.

Councillor Brenton proposed an amendment, namely that any increase in council 
tax go towards housing.    There was no seconder for this motion.

Page 7



4

Resolved:

That:

a. Torridge’s Band D Council Tax for 2017/18 be increased by £5 (3.36%) from 
£148.66 to £153.66 per year.

b. That £0.400m is transferred from the Transition in Government Funding 
Reserve as recommended in paragraph 10.7.

c. Torridge’s Net Revenue Budget 2017/18 is £10.250m.

d. The grants to external organisations as reported in paragraph 10.4 and 
attached as Appendix 1.

e. Contributions from and control of the Council’s reserves as outlined in 
paragraph 10.3 is approved.

f. That Members note the Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) assurance of the 
robustness of the Budget 2017/18 set out in section 13 of the report.

g. Notes the assumptions and forecasts applied to develop the MTFS outlined 
in section 14

h. Notes the forecast surplus of £0.04m in the MTFS for 2021/22.

i. Notes the risks associated with the Budget 2017/18 and MTFS outlined in 
paragraph 14.3.

j. The inclusion of the Capital Projects (PiDs) listed at 12.6 into the Capital 
Programme 2016/17 to 2021/22.

Votes were recorded as follows:

COUNCILLORS FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
BOYLE, AJ X
BRENTON, DG X
BROWN, M X
CARROLL, K X
DARCH, R X
DAVIS, K X
DEZART, GA X
EASTMAN, AJ X
GREGOREK, Z X
HACKETT, PJW X
HICKS, RH X
HIMAN, J X
HURLEY, D X
INCH, AT X
INCH SG X

Page 8



5

JAMES KJ X
JOHNS TJ X
JULIAN, R X
LANGMEAD, M X
LANGTON-LOCKTON, J X
LE MAISTRE, PG X
LOCK, RA X
MORRISH, J X
McGEOUGH, DAD X
PARKER I X
PENNINGTON, PW X
ROBINSON, S X
SIMMONS, C X
WISEMAN, R X

(Vote:  For 19, Against 10)

82.   COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION 2017/2018 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented this report, the purpose of which 
was to enable the Council to calculate and approve the Council Tax requirement for 
2017/18.

Councillor Morrish commented that whilst a great supporter of the police and other 
services, they should not take for granted that they can increase the council tax.

Members were reminded that a recorded vote was required.

It was proposed by Councillor S Inch, seconded by Councillor Hackett and -

Resolved:

That the formal Council Tax Resolution for 2017/18 as set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report be approved.

COUNCILLORS FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
BOYLE, AJ X
BRENTON, DG X
BROWN, M X
CARROLL, K X
DARCH, R X
DAVIS, K X
DEZART, GA X
EASTMAN, AJ X
GREGOREK, Z X
HACKETT, PJW X
HICKS, RH X
HIMAN, J X
HURLEY, D X
INCH, AT X

Page 9



6

INCH SG X
JAMES KJ X
JOHNS TJ X
JULIAN, R X
LANGMEAD, M X
LANGTON-LOCKTON, J X
LE MAISTRE, PG X
LOCK, RA X
MORRISH, J X
McGEOUGH, DAD X
PARKER I X
PENNINGTON, PW X
ROBINSON, S X
SIMMONS, C X
WISEMAN, R X

(Vote:  For 18, Against 11)

83.   PETITIONS 

There were no petitions.

84.   NOTICES OF MOTION 

There were no notices of motion.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.30 pm

Chair: Date:

Page 10



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Monday, 6 March 2017 - 6.30 pm

PRESENT: Councillor M Langmead (Chair)
Councillor J Himan (Vice-Chair)

Councillors A Boyle, D Brenton, M Brown, K Carroll, P Christie, 
R Darch, K Davis, G Dezart, A Eastman, Z Gregorek, P Hackett, 
R Hancock, R Hicks, D Hurley, S Inch, K James, T Johns, 
R Julian, J Langton-Lockton, P Le Maistre, R Lock, D McGeough, 
J Morrish, I Parker, P Pennington, S Robinson, P Watson, 
J Whittaker and R Wiseman

ALSO PRESENT: J Wallace, Head of Paid Service
S Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources)
J Hollis, Senior Solicitor
S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer
M Richards, Democratic Services Officer
A Redwood, Property and Procurement Manager
H Roper, Service Improvement Officer
I Rowland, Senior Planning Policy Officer

I Harper, Non-elected Member

6 Members of the public

85.   APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Boundy, Dart, T Inch,  
Simmons and Whittle.  

86.   COUNCIL MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor S Inch, seconded by Councillor Watson and -

Resolved:   That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2017 be confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For 28, Abstentions 2) 

Page 11



2

87.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

With the permission of the Chair, Mrs Annie Brenton addressed the meeting with 
regard to Torridge procedures and the Council’s treatment of Councillor Brenton.  
She made reference to victimisation, persecution and the amount of time and 
money wasted and stated that Councillor Brenton had only been carrying out his 
duty to Bideford.  She added that the Chair and the Leader of the Council had 
discussed Brunswick Wharf in open forum and given interviews with the North 
Devon Gazette at a time when, in her view, the matter had still been confidential.  
The subject had been discussed by Bideford Town Council at that time also.

Mrs Brenton concluded that the Council had been brought into disrepute and had a 
bias toward the ruling Conservative views. 

Mr John Lewis addressed the meeting on the subject of recycling, having read 
recently that, at a meeting of the Full Council on 23rd January, Councillors had 
voted in favour of taking forward an options model that looked at the way Waste 
and Recycling services were delivered across the district.  He expressed 
disappointment that Torridge's recycling rate of around 43-45% had dropped from 
46% 5 years previously.

Mr Lewis then gave details of his own personal experiences in relation to the 
collection of recycling boxes.  He added that he would use social media to report 
any further developments and he hoped that the Lead Member for Waste & 
Recycling would take his case up with the team.

88.   TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

With the permission of the Chair, Councillor Carroll raised the issue of the recent, 
precipitous closure of beds at Holsworthy Hospital.  Councillors had been advised 
on Friday, March 3, that the temporary closure would take effect from March 31.  

At a meeting, attended by 150 people, Dr Alison Diamond had stated the decision 
had been based on safety issues relating to workforce shortages.

A further public meeting will take place on 15 March at 7pm at Holsworthy Memorial 
Hall.  The meeting will be addressed by Dr Diamond.

The Chair added that a lot of meetings were scheduled and a list will be circulated 
by the Clerk.

89.   TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

The Chair stated that there were no questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9.  
This was disputed by Councillor Brenton. 

Page 12



3

The Chair explained that the written question submitted by Councillor Brenton had 
contained potentially defamatory remarks and consequently Procedural Rule A9 
could not be applied as the law took precedence over Torridge District Council’s 
Constitution.  A written response had been provided to Councillor Brenton prior to 
discussion of this item.

Councillor Brenton was unwilling to accept the explanation given and, following 
further protestations and disregard of the Chair's ruling, it was proposed by 
Councillor Le Maistre, seconded by Councillor Dezart and –

Resolved:

That Councillor Brenton leave the room for the duration of the meeting.

(Vote: For 16, Against 14)

Councillor Brenton acknowledged the democratic vote and left the meeting.

90.   ATLANTIC RACQUET CENTRE 

The Chair invited Mr David Vinall, Atlantic Racquet Centre, to deliver his 
presentation.

Mr Vinall thanked the Committee for their time and proceeded to give an overview 
of the history, structure and planned facilities of the Atlantic Racquet Centre which 
were to include 6 outdoor, floodlit tennis courts; 4 indoor tennis courts; 4 badminton 
courts; 3 squash courts, a gym, a sports hall and a clubhouse.  Details were given 
about building works, both completed and planned and architects impressions and 
drawings were shown.

The current programme of tuition delivered lessons to 220 people, a 4-fold increase 
over the previous September.  There was a large collaboration with local schools 
and in particular with the 9 member schools of the ACCT.  

Mr Vinall handed over to Dr Mark Clayton who spoke about the health benefits and 
his vision to one day be in a position where he could prescribe exercise on a 
prescription.

Bringing the presentation to a close, Mr Vinall summarised the funding received to 
date and the ARC’s proposals to raise the remaining monies.  

Discussions followed and congratulations were extended on the progress achieved.  

The Lead Member for Community Culture & Leisure recommended that the 
External Overview & Scrutiny Committee review whether it would be possible to 
allocate further funding towards a prescription scheme within the New Homes 

Page 13



4

Bonus scheme.  The Chair of the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee agreed 
that this should be on the agenda for the next meeting.

Details of the Buy a Brick scheme to be circulated via the Clerk.

The Chair thanked Mr Vinall and Dr Clayton.

91.   HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) DEVOLUTION 

The Head of Paid Service provided an update following the ‘in principle’ Council 
approvals to progress negotiations for a devolution deal and the establishment of a 
Combined Authority.  

It had been made quite clear by the Secretary of State that an elected  Mayoral 
Combined Authority model was now required to achieve a devolution deal.   At Full 
Council on 27 June the intention for the partnership to continue with the 
development of a Productivity Plan had been agreed.

Exeter University had carried out some research and work was ongoing to identify 
groups within the Heart of the South West to support the ‘in principle’ agreement 
and to take forward the work in order to be prepared should there be a further 
change in position.  A Joint Committee would be set up to look at a future 
submission and development of a productivity plan.  Within this, each Council 
would have one vote.  The County Council elections scheduled for May 2017 
meant that a final decision to establish the Joint Committee would not be made until 
after that date.

It was noted that:

 All 19 organisations within the partnership had contributed £5000 each to 
fund the research 

 Any cost sharing agreement would need to be approved by Full Council 
 It was unlikely that Cornwall would consider a partnership with Devon as it 

own development bid with the Isles of Scilly had already been approved. 

It was proposed by Councillor Morrish, seconded by Councillor Pennington and –

Resolved:

1. The update about the HotSW Combined Authority / devolution deal proposals 
(including noting that a Joint Committee, if established, will have responsibility 
for developing future ‘deal’ and combined authority proposals for 
recommendation to the constituent authorities) be noted;

2. The proposals for the HotSW Productivity Plan preparation and consultation 
proposals (including noting that a Joint Committee, if established, will have 
responsibility for approving and overseeing the implementation of the 
Productivity Plan) be approved;

Page 14



5

(a) The establishment of a HotSW Joint Committee with a Commencement Date of 
Friday 1st September 2017 in accordance with the summary proposals set out 
in the report be agreed ‘in principle’; 

(b) That it be agreed that the ‘in principle’ decision at (a) above be subject to further 
recommendation and report to the constituent authorities after the County 
Council elections in May 2017 and confirmatory decisions to: approve the 
establishment of the Joint Committee; a constitutional ‘Arrangements’ 
document; an ‘Inter-Authority Agreement’ setting out the support arrangements;  
appoint  representatives to the Joint Committee; and appoint an Administering 
Authority. 

3. That any further costs above £5000 be brought back to Full Council for 
agreement.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

92.   WINKLEIGH PARISH NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA DESIGNATION 

The Senior Planning Policy Officer presented the report and sought approval of:

a) The designation of Winkleigh Civil Parish as a Neighbourhood Area under 
Section 61G of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

b) An amendment to the current Scheme of Delegation to provide a new power 
for the Head Of Paid Service to take future decisions relating to the 
designation of neighbourhood areas in particular circumstances.

From 1 October 2016, the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
came into effect.  One of the amendments has the effect that -

In relation to applications for the designation of a neighbourhood area, where:

1. the qualifying body is a parish council;
2. the proposed area consists the whole of the parish council’s area; and
3. if any part of the specified area is part of an existing neighbourhood 

area, none of that existing neighbourhood area extends outside of 
the parish council’s area; 

then the requirements for publicity and consultation on applications, along with the 
time periods for determination, no longer apply. 

The local planning authority is now explicitly directed that for such applications they 
must exercise their powers to designate the specified area as a neighbourhood 
area.  As such, if a qualifying application meeting these requirements is submitted 
to a local planning authority, then it has no choice but to designate the area.

Winkleigh Parish Council formally submitted an application to Torridge District 
Council on 26 January 2017, seeking the designation of the entirety of the Civil 
Parish of Winkleigh as a Neighbourhood Area.  The application is considered to 
conform with the above requirements.

Page 15



6

During the ensuing discussions:

 The Senior Planning Policy Officer confirmed that the consideration of 
applications for the designation of neighbourhood areas is straightforward 
and as such their processing should raise no capacity issues.  

 Clarification was sought as to whether Winkleigh Civic Parish included the 
historic parish of Hollacombe also.  The Senior Planning Policy Officer will 
check.

 It was noted that the main reason for the proposal to delegate powers to the 
Head of Paid Service, as detailed above, was to expedite the processing of 
applications.  

 Councillor Lock put forward an amendment to recommendation 2 that the 
Planning Manager be included in the consultations.

 The Senior Planning Policy Officer confirmed that £5000 could be claimed 
from Government on the successful designation of each of the first 5 
neighbourhood areas.

 The Senior Solicitor advised that the changes to delegated powers would be 
permanent once agreed until such point someone should ask for a further 
change.

The Chair advised that, for clarity, the recommendations would be taken 
individually.

It was proposed by Councillor Morrish, seconded by Councillor Hicks and –

Resolved:

That Winkleigh Civil Parish (as outlined on the map at Appendix 2 of the report) be 
designated as a Neighbourhood Area in accordance with Section 61G of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

It was proposed by Councillor Watson and seconded by Councillor Lock that -

Subject to the amendment put forward by Councillor Lock above, the scheme of 
Delegations to Officers, as set out within Chapter 2 of Part 3 of the Council’s 
adopted Constitution 2016, be amended to delegate authority to the Head of Paid 
Service, by inserting the following as an additional clause, to follow Section 38 of 
Part B2: 

“Subject to prior consultation with the Lead Member for Planning and Development 
and the relevant Ward Member(s), the determination, designation and/or making of 
a neighbourhood area following a valid application from a parish council that 

Page 16



7

accords with Regulation 5A of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 
2012 (as amended).” 

(Vote: For 9, Against 21)

The motion was lost.

93.   APPOINTMENT OF NON-ELECTED REPRESENTATIVE 

The Senior Solicitor presented the report, the purpose of which was to seek 
approval to appoint an independent non-elected representative to the Council’s 
Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee.

It was proposed by Councillor Inch, seconded by Councillor Pennington and –

Resolved:

That the appointment of Mr David Mason to the role of independent non-elected 
representative on the Councils Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee for a 
term of 4 years be approved.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

94.   TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the report and highlighted the 
changes over the previous year’s report.  The changes were:

 To use prudential borrowing power to partly fund the Waste & Recycling 
project.

 Removal of the Royal Bank of Scotland from the list of approved 
counterparties, as they no longer meet Torridge District Council’s Treasury 
requirements and recommendations.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Watson and – 

Resolved:

That the Treasury Management and Investment Strategy and Counterparty List, 
Prudential Indicators and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy be approved.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

95.   PAY POLICY 

The Head of Paid Service and the Strategic Manager (Resources) left the room.

This item was introduced by the Leader of the Council.

Page 17



8

In response to a question about Member input into redundancy packages, the 
Senior Solicitor confirmed that this fell within the statutory role of the Head of Paid 
Service.  Advice would be taken from the South West Councils Advisory Service.

The Deputy Leader called for a Constitution Working Group to be set up.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Julian and -

Resolved:

That the pay policy be approved.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

96.   STANDARDS COMMITTEE DETERMINATION - CLLR DAVID BRENTON 

The Senior Solicitor reported that the Council’s Standards Committee had met on 
30 January 2017 to consider allegations of a breach of the Members Code of 
Conduct by Councillor David Brenton.  Following consideration of the matter, the 
Committee resolved that its findings should be reported to Full Council. 

The Standards Committee had resolved to impose the following sanctions:

• To issue a censure to Councillor Brenton
• To report the findings of the Standards Committee 30 January 2017 

meeting to Full Council
• Recommend to Councillor Brenton Group Leader that Councillor Brenton be 

removed from Torridge District Council’s Standards Committee

The Chair of the Standards Committee added that he and his Committee had taken 
no pleasure in dealing with the issue.  The Committee was non-political and 
included 4 independent external Members.  The issue had been reviewed with due 
diligence and professionalism and the meeting had lasted for 3 hours.

Attention was drawn to a technicality in respect of the draft minutes and the vote.  
The Chair of the Standards Committee confirmed that each sanction had been 
voted on independently and the in each case the vote had been unanimous.

The legal basis of and the evidence supporting the decision came into question.  
The Solicitor provided answers to these questions and further questions about the 
proceedings.  

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Gregorek and – 

Resolved:

That under Section 100(a) (4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the 

Page 18



9

public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of 
the likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and  
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

PART II (Closed Session) 

A brief discussion took place on the Standards Committee Hearing which had been 
carried out in Part II on 30 January 2017.

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Watson and –

Resolved:

That the meeting return to Part I and that any press and public be readmitted.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

The Group Leader (Non-aligned) advised that he had not yet spoken with 
Councillor Brenton regarding Councillor Brenton’s removal from Torridge District 
Council’s Standards Committee and added that his Group was not a political group; 
consequently he was unsure how effective he could be in implementing the 
recommendation of the Standards Committee.  He highlighted a discrepancy 
between the use of “request” and “recommend” within the minutes, the letter and 
decision notice.  

A debate on the changes brought about by the Localism Act and the impact these 
had had on the powers of the Standards Committee followed.

It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Julian and – 

Resolved:

That the findings of the Standards Committee as set out in the decision notice be 
noted. 

Councillor Gregorek left the meeting.

(Vote: For 26, Against 3)  Councillor Morrish voted against.

97.   TRANSFORMING TORRIDGE PROGRAMME (STANDING ITEM) 

The Head of Paid Service referred to the e-mail which had been sent to all 
Councillors in relation to the office building and customer hub at Riverbank House 
and confirmed that the contract had been awarded to Devon Contractors.  The 
works were due to commence 20 March and would be project managed by the 
Property & Procurement Manager.

Page 19



10

98.   PETITIONS 

There were no petitions. 

99.   NOTICES OF MOTION 

It was proposed by Councillor Langmead, seconded by Councillor Hackett and –

Resolved:

That standing orders be suspended.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

Councillor Whittaker introduced this item, stating her intention in bringing this to the 
attention of Full Council was to seek approval to write to Geoffrey Cox, MP to 
empower him to stand alongside other MPs in lobbying Parliament and raising 
awareness of the issue of rurality. 

The item was discussed.

It was proposed by Councillor Johns, seconded by Councillor Langmead and – 

Resolved:

That the motion be passed.

(Vote: For 28, Against 1)

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.56 pm

Chair: Date:

Page 20



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor
To: Full Council
Subject: Size of Committees and Terms of Reference
Date: 15 May 2017

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To confirm the size of Committees and their Terms of Reference 

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the size of 
Committees and their Terms of Reference as set out In Part 3 of the Constitution each year 
at the Annual General Meeting

2. REPORT

The Committees current sizes are set out in the following table: 

Committee Number of Seats
Community & Resources Committee 12
Audit & Governance Committee   6 

(plus 1 non-elected)
Overview & Scrutiny (Internal)   9 

(plus up to 3 non-elected)
Overview & Scrutiny (External)   9

(plus up to 3 non-elected)
Plans Committee   9
Joint Crematorium Committee   5
Proportional Representation not required:
Licensing Committee 10
Standards Committee   7

(plus up to 2 parish reps)
Joint Local Plan Working Group   7

The Committees existing Terms of Reference as set out in Part 3 of the Constitution is 
attached in Appendix 1. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
n/a

4. CONCLUSIONS

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the size of 
Committees and their Terms of Reference as set out In Part 3 of the Constitution each year 
at the Annual General Meeting

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

 Approve the size of Committees as stated in this report and their Terms of Reference 
as set out in Appendix 1.

Page 22



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference and Function

The Council’s Community and Resources Committee shall take decisions relating to:-

1. The formulation (but not the adoption or approval) of:- a) 

the Policy Framework,
b) the budget; and
c) the Council’s objectives and priorities.

2. The control and management of resources including land, finance and staff to 
further the Council’s objectives.

3. Ensuring compliance with the Council’s budget including it’s revenue and capital 
budgets and the management of the Council’s assets.

4. Overall responsibility for the performance framework of the Council.

5. The adoption and approval of strategies and policies not forming part of the
Policy Framework apart from those policies for which delegated power is given to the 
Head of Paid Service to approve under Part 3 Chapter 2.

 6. The setting of fees and charges in relation to any of the Council’s functions with the 
exception of any such fees and charges that must be determined by full Council.

Responsibility

The Council’s Community and Resources Committee shall be responsible for managing 
and/or making decisions relating to any function, duty or power of the Council which is not 
delegated to an officer, member or Committee, or reserved for decision by Full Council under 
this Constitution or by law.

Composition

1. The number of seats shall be Twelve (12) Councillors.

2. The quorum shall be Seven (7).

Page 23



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Statement of Purpose

The Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Committees have been appointed to discharge the 
functions conferred by Section 21 and 21A of the Local Government Act 2000, the Police & 
Justice Act 2006 and the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 in relation to the work of Full 
Council, Council’s established Committees and other external bodies.

The Council has appointed 2 Overview & Scrutiny Committees: an Internal Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee and an External Overview & Scrutiny Committee. As a guide:-

Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee

The Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee will exercise its functions in respect of 
the Council’s policies, decisions, performance framework and actions with an “inward 
facing” emphasis.

External Overview & Scrutiny Committee

The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee will exercise its functions in respect of 
the performance of partners and external public sector bodies and council services 
with an “outward facing” emphasis on the area of Torridge and its inhabitants.

The Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Committees will conduct their functions in 
accordance with the following principles:-

a) they will provide a “critical friend” challenge to decision makers and 
external bodies and agencies;

b) they will reflect the voice and concerns of the public and the community;

c) they will take the lead and own the scrutiny process on behalf of the 
public; and

d) they will endeavour to make an impact to improve the delivery of public 
services.

Page 24



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibilities – Applicable to Both  
Overview & Scrutiny Committees

The following terms of reference, functions and responsibilities shall apply equally to both 
Internal and External Overview & Scrutiny Committees. Either of the Council’s Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees shall:-

a) exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet 
implemented by the Council and/or any committees of the Council in accordance with the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules and to recommend that either the decision be 
reconsidered or that the decision be exercised/implemented by the Council;

b) hear any matter brought to it as a Community Call for Action under powers 
adopted under section 21A Local Government Act 2000 and make any necessary 
reports and/or recommendations on the same;

c) make reports and/or recommendations to Full Council and/or any Committees in 
connection with the discharge of any of its functions;

d) assist the Council and its Community & Resources Committee in the development 
of its budget and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues;

e) question members of the Council’s Committees and in particular, as appropriate, the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman and chief officer regarding their views on issues and proposals 
affecting the District;

f) make recommendations to the Council’s Committees and/or Full Council arising from 
the outcome of the scrutiny process;

g) question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent); and

h) call officers to account under the relevant Petition Scheme from time to time in 
force and contained at Part 8 of the Constitution

Finance

The Overview & Scrutiny Committees may exercise overall responsibility for any budgets made 
available to them.

Annual Report

Each Overview & Scrutiny Committee will report annually to Full Council on its workings, and 
make recommendations for future work programmes and amended working
methods as necessary.

Officers

The Overview & Scrutiny Committees may exercise overall responsibility for the work 
programme of the officers employed to support their work.

Page 25



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Terms of Reference, Function 
and Responsibilities

The following terms of reference, functions and responsibilities shall apply to the
Council’s Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee only. The Council’s Internal Overview
& Scrutiny Committee shall:-

a) review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with the 
discharge of any of the Council’s functions including decisions taken by the Community & 
Resources Committee or by an officer;

b) review matters previously decided by the Community & Resources Committee of the 
Council and referred to it by Full Council under the Referral Procedure set out in Article 12.6 
and Part 4 of this Constitution;

c) exercise any of its functions in respect of decisions relating to the overall 
resource of the Council, both land and finance;

d) monitor the overall budget of the Council and ensure compliance with that budget 
(both revenue and capital) and the Council’s assets, including arrangements for audit and 
review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy objectives, 
performance targets and/or particular service areas;

e) monitor compliance with the Council’s overall policy framework;

f) monitor the efficient administration of the Council’s trading responsibilities;

g) question members of the Community & Resources Committee and chief officers 
about their decisions and performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans 
and targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or projects;

h) consider Ombudsman reports as relevant to the Community & Resources
Committee.

External Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Terms of Reference, Function 
and Responsibilities

The following terms of reference, functions and responsibilities shall apply to the 
Council’s External Overview & Scrutiny Committee only. The Council’s External 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall:-

a) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;

b) conduct research and reviews in relation to matters which are not the responsibility 
of the Council but which affect the Council’s area or its inhabitants and submit reports and/or 
recommendations to the Council, its Committees or other relevant organisations;

Page 26



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

c)         conduct research of the community and other consultation in the analysis of 
policy issues and possible options;

d) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community 
participation in the development of policy options;

e) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether national, 
regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are enhanced by 
collaborative working;

f) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies and bodies with whom 
the Council works in the area and invite reports from them by requesting them to 
address the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee and local people about their 
activities and performance;

g) act as Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee under section 19 of the Police & 
Justice Act 2006.

Composition of both Internal and External Overview & Scrutiny Committees

1. The Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Committees shall be made up of up to Twelve
(12) members.

2. Membership of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall be made up as 
follows:-

a) Nine (9) District Councillors; and
b) Up to Three (3) Non-Elected Representatives.

3. The quorum shall be Six (6).

4. Non-Elected Representatives are entitled to vote at Committee meetings in 
accordance with the Council’s adopted Voting Scheme.

Page 27



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Statement of Purpose

The purpose of an audit & governance committee is to provide assurance of the adequacy of 
the risk management framework and the associated control environment, scrutiny of the 
authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s 
exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting 
process.

Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibilities

The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee shall be responsible for:-

1.     Audit Activity

a) To consider the Internal Audit Manager’s annual report and opinion, and a summary 
of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can give 
over the Council’s corporate governance arrangements;

b) To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested;
c) To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the providers 

of internal audit services;
d) To consider a report from internal audit on agreed recommendations not

implemented within a reasonable timescale;
e) To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, other relevant reports, and the report 

to those charged with governance;
f) To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor;
g) To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives 

value for money;
h) To liaise with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited over the appointment of the 

council’s external auditor;
i) To commission work from internal and external audit.

2.     Regulatory Framework

a) To maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of contract 
procedure rules, financial procedure rules and codes of conduct and behaviour;

b) To review any issue referred to it by the Head of Paid Service or a Strategic Manager, 
the Senior Solicitor, or any Council body;

c) To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the council;

d) To monitor council policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’ and the anti-fraud and anti-
corruption strategy and the council’s complaints process;

e) To approve and adopt the Council’s Annual Governance Statement or
Statement on Internal Control.

Page 28



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

f) To consider the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance 
and agreeing necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice;

g) To consider the council’s compliance with it’s own and other published 
standards and controls.

3.     Accounts

a)   To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider 
              whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are
             concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be 
            brought to the attention of the council;
      b)   To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 
            ssues arising from the audit of accounts.

Composition & Administration

Composition

1. The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee shall be made up of Seven (7)
members.

2. Membership of the Council’s Audit & Governance Committee shall be made up 
as follows:-

a) Six (6) District Councillors; and
b) One (1) Independent/Non-Elected Representative.

3. The quorum shall be Four (4). 

Administration

The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee and its members shall:-

a) Be independent of the Council’s scrutiny function and Overview & Scrutiny
Committees;

b) Have clear reporting lines and rights of access to other committees/functions, for 
example scrutiny and service committees, corporate risk management
and other strategic groups;

c) Meet regularly – about five times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to 
be considered in private and those to be considered in public;

d) Meet privately and separately with the external auditor and audit manager;
e) Include as regular attendees, the Statutory Finance Officer or Finance Manager, the 

audit manager and appointed external auditor and relationship manager. Other 
attendees may include the Monitoring Officer and Head of Paid Service.. These 
officers should also have access to the committee, or chair, as required;

f) Have the right to call any other officers or agencies as required;
g) Be properly trained to fulfil their role.

Page 29



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

PLANS COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibility

The Council’s Plans Committee shall:-

1. Be responsible for making decisions in respect of the Council’s regulatory 
responsibilities in connection with the Council’s Planning function to include 
decisions on:-

a) development control;
b) enforcement obligations; and
c) the Council’s tree preservation system.

2.      Provide assistance to constituents where appropriate, by advising them to seek pre-
application advice and/or guidance from the Council’s Development Control and 
Policy Sections.

3. Discuss and clarify with Officers what is “good” development for the District.

4. Where applications are in the District’s interests but against the Local Plan, the 
Plans Committee shall discuss these applications as ‘test cases’ and have 
informed discussion at the Plans Committee meetings.

Decision Making by and Public Participation at Plans Committee

1. All decisions of the Plans Committee will be made having due regard to the Local 
Development Framework and supporting policies which together form the Council’s 
Local Plan unless there are any overriding considerations.

2. In the event that the Plans Committee is minded to approve or refuse a planning 
application contrary to the recommendation of the Council’s Head of Service with 
responsibility for planning, the application shall stand deferred for a further report to 
be presented at a subsequent meeting of the Plans Committee at which the 
implications, process and risk issues for the Council shall be considered by Members 
before reaching a decision. 

3. Members of the public will be allowed to speak at a Plans Committee Meeting for a 
maximum time of three minutes and subject to the approved Guide to Public 
Participation and Code of Conduct which can be found at Part 5 of the Constitution.

Composition

1. The Council’s Plans Committee shall be made up of up to Nine (9) qualified 
councillors.

2. The quorum shall be Six (6).

Page 30



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

LICENSING COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibility

The Council’s Licensing Committee shall:-

1. Carry out the functions of the Council as Licensing Authority so far as required or 
permitted by the Licensing Act 2003 in accordance with sections 6,7,9 and 10 of that 
Act and regulations thereunder.

2. Carry out the functions of the Council as Licensing Authority under the Gambling
Act 2005.

3.        Be responsible for the following licensing and associated issues (excluding the fixing 
of fees and charges and other financial issues which fall to the Council’s Community 
and Resources Committee):

a)        Food Premises;
b)        Body Piercing, Acupuncture, etc; 
c)        Hackney Carriage and Hire Cars; 
d)        Boats and Boatmen;
e)        Street Collections;
f)         House to House Collections;
g)        Animal Welfare;
h)        Caravan Sites;
i)         Entertainment, etc;
j)         Consumption of Alcohol in Public Places;
k)        Loudspeakers in the Street;
l)         Scrap Metal Dealers & Motor Salvage Operators;
m)       Vessels;
n)        Amusements with Prizes, Betting, Gaming and Gambling; and
o) such other licensing and associated issues that are not dealt with by any 

other Committee.

Composition

1. The Council’s Licensing Committee shall be made up of up to Ten (10) qualified 
councillors.

2. The quorum shall be Six (6).

3. The functions of the Council’s Licensing Committee may be discharged by up to
Three (3) sub-committees subject to approval at Annual Council.

4. Membership of the Council’s Licensing Committee shall be cross-party and non- 
political.

Page 31



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibility

The Council’s Standards Committee shall:-

1. Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the members and co-opted 
members of the Council;

2. Assist Members and co-opted members of the Council to observe the Members’ 
Code of Conduct;

3. Advise full Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of Conduct;

4. Monitor the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct;

5. Advise, train or arrange training for members and co-opted members on matters 
relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct;

6. Grant dispensations to District Council Members and co-opted Members from 
requirements relating to interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct;

7. Deal with any reports relating to complaints from the Monitoring Officer;

8. Provide the same functions (other than the grant of dispensations) in relation to 
parish councils and members of the parish councils as in relation to Torridge 
District Council and members of Torridge District Council;

Powers to Impose Sanctions

1.  The standards Committee shall have the following powers when dealing with and 
deciding upon a complaint:-

a) To issue a censure to a Councillor,
b) To request that a Councillor issue a written apology
c) To recommend that a Councillor undergo appropriate training,
d) To recommend to the relevant Group Leader and to Full Council and/or a 

Parish/Town Council that other action be taken against a Councillor
e) Publication of the findings of the Standards Committee including media 

statements or press releases, publication on the Council’s website and inclusion 
of details in the Members Bulletin;

f) Report the findings of the Standards Committee to full Council;
g) Recommend to the Councillor’s group leader (or in the case of ungrouped 

Councillors, recommend directly to full Council) that he/she be removed from 
any or all committees or sub-committees of the Council;

h) Recommend to full Council that the Councillor be removed from their role as 
Lead Member if applicable;

i) Recommend to full Council that the Councillor be removed from all outside 
bodies to which they have been appointed or nominated by full Council;

j) Recommend to full Council the withdrawal of certain facilities provided to the 
Councillor by the Council as may be reasonable in the circumstances;

k) Recommend to full Council that the Councillor be excluded from the Council’s 

Page 32



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for 
attending full Council, committee and sub-committee meetings or put in place 
such restrictions on access to staff as may be reasonable in the circumstances;

l) Recommend to full Council the suspension, withdrawal or reduction of a 
Councillor’s Voluntary Grant Budget for a period of time following the finding of 
breach. 

Composition

1. The Council’s Standards Committee shall be made up of up to Nine (9) members.

  2.  Membership of the Council’s Standards Committee shall be made up as follows:- 
             Seven (7) District Councillors; and

             Two (2) Town/Parish Representatives:
of whom the quorum shall be Five (5).

3. The Council shall appoint up to two (2) Independent Persons to assist the Standards 
Committee, the Monitoring Officer, and individual Councillors in accordance with the 
Localism Act 2011.

4 The functions of the Council’s Standards Committee may be discharged by sub- 
committees appointed by the Standards Committee.

5. The Town/Parish representatives shall not be entitled to vote at Standards
Committee meetings but shall be able to take part in the discussions.

  6. The Independent Persons will be invited to attend meetings of the Standards Committee 
and take part in the discussions, but shall not be entitled to vote. 

Page 33



V1.1                                                                                                                                    August 2016

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK GROUP

Terms of Reference, Function and Responsibility

The Local Development Framework is an overarching and core element of every aspect of 
the service provided by the Council and responsibility for it does not sit with one Committee.  
It will impinge on the work of all Committees and sub-groups.

The Local Development Framework Group will receive Head of Paid Service support and 
play an important role, for example, linking all aspects of Development Control and the 
Council’s strategic priorities.

The Local Development Framework Group shall have no decision making powers other than 
the power to make recommendations to the Council’s other Committees or to Full Council.

Composition

1. The Council’s Local Development Framework Group shall be made up Seven (7) 
Councillors.

2. The quorum shall be Five (5) with:

a) Two (2) members from the Council’s Community & Resources
Committee; and

b) Three (3) other members, all of whom must be qualified to sit on the
Council’s Plans Committee.

Page 34



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor
To: Full Council
Subject: Allocation of Seats to Political Groups
Date: 15 May 2017

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To agree the number of seats on the Committees allocated to each of the Political Groups

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the number of 
seats on the Committees allocated to each of the Political Groups each year at the Annual 
General Meeting

2. REPORT

The Committee seats are allocated on a political proportionality basis. There is currently one 
vacancy on the Council and this will be filled by election on 8 June 2017.  A further report will 
be provided to Full Council on 26 June to update the political balance with this result.  Based 
on the number of Councillors per Group the seat allocation has been calculated as follows:

Political Balance

      Conservative           52.78%          
 UKIP                       16.67%                

Non-aligned          11.11%                  
Independent          16.67%                  

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
n/a

4. CONCLUSIONS

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the number of 
seats on the Committees allocated to each of the Political Groups at the Annual General 
Meeting

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

 Approve the number of seats on the Committees allocated to each of the Political 
Groups are calculated as follows:

Conservative           52.78%          
 UKIP                       16.67%                

Non-aligned          11.11%                  
Independent          16.67%                  

Page 36



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor
To: Full Council
Subject: Membership of Committees
Date: 15 May 2017

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To agree the Membership of Committees

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve (or delegate to 
Group Leaders to agree) the Members serving on Committees each year at the Annual 
General Meeting

2. REPORT

The current Committee membership is attached for Members information at Appendix 1.  

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
n/a

4. CONCLUSIONS

Members are asked to either agree the membership on each Committee or delegate to 
Group Leaders to agree.

Page 37

Agenda Item 12



5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to either:

 Agree the membership on each Committee, or
 Delegate to Group Leaders to agree the membership on each Committee

 

Page 38



Appendix 1 - Membership of Committees
2016/17

Committee Conservative Non Aligned Independent UKIP
Community & 
Resources 
Committee

12 seats -  7 quorum      

J Whittaker (C)
D Hurley (VC)
J Morrish
R Lock
D McGeough
A Inch
J Himan

7 Seats

D Brenton

1 Seats

R Wiseman
R Hicks

2 Seats

S Robinson
R Julian

2 Seats
Audit & Governance 
Committee
6 Councillors
1 Non elected 
(Ashworth)
7 seats (4 quorum)     

P Hackett (C)
B Boundy (VC)
J Himan

3 Seats

D Brenton

1 Seat

K James

1 Seat

R Julian

1 Seat
Overview & Scrutiny 
Internal
 9 elected 
 3 non-elected 
 (Pearce, Harper, 
Lockwood)

12 seats (6 quorum)      

P Watson (C)
P Le Maistre (VC)
S Inch
M Langmead

4 Seats

C Simmons

1 Seat

P Pennington
A Dart

2 Seats

G Dezart
Vacancy

2 Seats
Overview & Scrutiny 
External
9 elected 
3 non-elected (Topham 
+2)

12 seats (6 quorum)

S Inch (C)
A Eastman
I Parker
A Boyle

4 Seats

T Johns

1 Seat

P Pennington (VC)
A Dart

2 Seats

R Darch
Vacancy

2 seats
Standards 
Committee
7 TDC Councillors
2 Town & Parish
(Clark & Martin)
Not politically 
balanced
9 seats (Quorum – 5)

K Carroll (C)
B Boundy (VC)
M Langmead

3 Seats

D Brenton

1 Seat

M Brown

1 Seat

S Robinson
G Dezart

2 Seat
Licensing Committee
10 seats
6 quorum    

Not politically 
balanced

A Inch (C)
D McGeough (VC)
J Himan
A Eastman
M Langmead
K Carroll

6 Seats

P Christie

1 Seat

K James

1 Seat

R Darch
R Hancock

2 Seats
Plans Committee
9 seats
6 quorum

R Lock (C)
P Hackett
J Langton-Lockton
M Langmead
P Watson

5 Seats

P Christie

1 Seat

M Brown (VC)

1 Seat

K Davis
S Robinson

2 Seats
Crematorium
Joint Committee
5 seats

S Inch
A Inch
M Langmead

3 Seats

T Johns

1 Seat 0 Seat

G Dezart

1 Seat

Page 39



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor
To: Full Council
Subject: Scheme of Delegation
Date: 15 May 2017

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To approve the Council’s Scheme of Delegation

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Scheme of 
Delegation each year at the Annual General Meeting

2. REPORT

The Scheme of Delegation as set-out in Appendix 1 has previously been approved by 
Councillors. 

There are no proposed amendments to the previously agreed Scheme of Delegation. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Scheme of 
Delegation

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Scheme of 
Delegation

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Standards Committee have recommended the amendment.

Page 40

Agenda Item 14



4. CONCLUSIONS

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Scheme of 
Delegation each year at the Annual General Meeting

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

 Approve the Scheme of Delegation as set-out in Appendix 1 

Page 41



V2.2  August 2016 
 

PART 3 – Chapter 2 

 

Officer Delegations 
 

A: INTERPRETATION AND GENERAL 
 
1. For the avoidance of doubt unless the context otherwise requires the following 

words and expressions have the following meaning:  
 

a) “the Constitution” shall be deemed to be the Torridge District Council 
Constitution as adopted from time to time including the published Rules 
of Procedure, Financial Procedure Rules, Contract Procedure Rules and 
all delegations; 

 
b) “the Planning Acts” shall mean the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990, the Town and Country Planning Act 2008, the Town and Country 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the 
Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 the Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development Act 1960 (and in respect of them all any 
amendments as may be made from time to time) and any regulations 
and orders made pursuant to the same including in particular, but 
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing the General 
Permitted Development Order 1995, the Hedgerow Regulations 1997, 
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 
1992 and the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 
(including in respect of them any amendments as may be made from 
time to time); 

 
c) Policies of the Council shall be deemed to be such policies as adopted 

from time to time and as amended from time to time including the 
Financial Procedure Rules and the Contract Procedure Rules, 

 
d) Legislation shall be deemed to include reference to any amendment, 

extension, application or re-enactment of it and includes any 
subordinate laws for the time being in force made under it and all orders, 
regulations, notices, codes of practice and guidance made under it. 

 
e) A formal caution shall include reference to a simple and conditional 

caution. 
 
2. Where a power is delegated to more than one Officer then all Officers to whom 

the power is delegated shall be able to exercise that power. 
 
3. In the absence of the Monitoring Officer or the Statutory Finance Officer, any 

officer duly appointed by them to act as their deputy may exercise any powers 
or duties delegated to them in their capacity as Monitoring Officer or Statutory 
Finance Officer (as the case may be), or any role or responsibility allocated to 
them within any part of the Constitution. 

 
4. Any post specifically referred to below shall be deemed to include any 

successor post, or a post which includes within the job description, elements 
relevant to any particular delegation, which were also present in the earlier post 
and shall include anyone acting up or seconded.  

 
5. All Delegated Powers shall be exercised and be subject to the content of all 

relevant policies adopted by the Council from time to time.  In the event of any 

Page 42



V2.2  August 2016 
 

conflict between these Delegated Powers and any such policy, the policy shall 
prevail. 

 
6.       In the absence of the Head of Paid Service, powers delegated to the Head of     

Paid Service under the Scheme of Delegation shall be exercisable by the 
Monitoring Officer and the Statutory Finance Officer.   

 

B: DELEGATIONS 
 
B1 ALL OFFICERS 
 
1. To act as a witness; 
 

a) on behalf of the Council in any proceeding in which the Council is 
directly involved;  

b) where so directed by a court, tribunal or other formal inquiry with power 
so to do; or 

c) in any other circumstance with the prior written approval of the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 

B2 HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 

Policies 
 
1. To adopt and approve policies made by the Council which relate to the 

operational requirements of the Council, its equipment or staff and to implement 
all policies adopted by the Council. 

 
Establishment 

 
2. To consider, amend and revise the manpower establishment provided any 

such amendments or revision is in accordance with any approved 
establishment plan and budgetary framework of the Council (as may be 
amended from time to time). 

 
3. To appoint temporary staff or authorise the appointment of external resources 

to undertake work normally undertaken by a Service subject to the costs thereof 
not exceeding the available budget of that Service. 

 
4. To act as the Head of Paid Service for the purposes of the Local Government 

and Housing Act 1989. 
 
5. To consider and determine pursuant to Part V of the Local Government 

Discretionary Payments Regulations 1996 (or any statutory provision replacing 
or re-enacting the same) including any amendments thereto: 

 
a) the amount of any injury allowance payable to an Officer; and 
b) any time period(s) associated therewith or to any death benefit 

payments referred to in those provisions. 
 
6. To consider, and approve or refuse (with or without modification) any 

application by the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer, Statutory Finance 
Officer or, where appropriate, Senior Solicitor or Strategic Manager to carry 
forward annual leave from one leave year to the next provided that any such 
approval or refusal shall be in accordance with any approved Council policies 
as have been adopted, and relate to the same. 

 

Page 43



V2.2  August 2016 
 

7. To recruit, select and appoint any Officer of Senior Solicitor or Strategic 
Manager level or below provided that such appointment is in accordance with 
Council policies and all relevant legislation. 

 
8. With the exception of any matter which directly relates to the Head of Paid 

Service, in relation to an Officer to hear, consider and determine: 
 
 a) any grievance and / or harassment matter; 
 

b) any disciplinary matter provided the Officer is of Senior Solicitor or 
Strategic Manager level or below; and  

 
c) any appeal in relation to a decision resulting from a grievance, 

harassment and / or disciplinary matter other a decision taken by the 
Head of Paid Service, Committee or a Sub-Committee; 

 
including in all cases, power: 

 
(i) to authorise such action as the Head of Paid Service deems appropriate 

in relation to any determination that is made (whether formal or informal) 
including the suspension and / or dismissal of any Officer of Senior 
Solicitor or Strategic Manager level or below, provided that this shall be 
in accordance with all relevant legislation, and 

 
(ii) to nominate any other Officer to exercise on his/her behalf all or any the 

powers contained in this delegation. 
 

Notwithstanding anything contained in this provision 8, the Head of Paid 
Service shall have the power to suspend any Officer pending an investigation in 
relation to that Officer provided that such suspension shall be in accordance 
with the Council policies and all relevant legislation. 

 
9. To arrange for, and where appropriate undertake, an investigation into any 

disciplinary matter relating to the Senior Solicitor, Strategic Manager, Monitoring 
Officer, Statutory Finance Officer or any other Officer exercising the role of 
Monitoring Officer or Statutory Finance Officer where the disciplinary action 
relates to their performance of such a role. 

 
10. Power to consider and approve or refuse requests to fill staff vacancies and 

authorise any other Officer to exercise such a power. 
 
11. To authorise and sign identity cards on behalf of any Officer within their Service 

Area as may be necessary for the proper performance of their duties. 
 
12. To authorise officers and/or other persons to undertake those matters identified 

within the identity cards and to issue and sign the same where in the opinion of 
the Head of Paid Service this is necessary for the proper performance of their 
duties. 

 
13. To consider and refuse or approve (with or without modification): 
 

a) essential car user allowances; 
b) essential telephone user payments;  
c) applications for car loans; and 
d) applications under the Cycle to work scheme adopted by the Council,  
 

Page 44



V2.2  August 2016 
 

provided that if the Council has approved policies (as amended from time to 
time) relating to the same, then any approval that is given shall be in 
accordance with such policies. 

 
14. To consider and determine whether to designate posts as casual car users or 

essential car users.  
 
15. To determine a reasonable charge for sale of documents or copies of 

documents which are not subject to any statutory scales. 
 

General 
 
16. To undertake any roles, actions or measures, including power to consider and 

determine any matter, allocated to the Head of Paid Service within the 
Constitution whether specifically identified in the delegated powers to Officers 
or otherwise. 

 
17. For the purposes of any budget or manpower resource within the control of the 

Head of Paid Service, the power to exercise all those delegated powers as are 
delegated to the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Managers. 

 
18. To exercise all the powers referred or delegated to any other Officer. 
 
19. In consultation with either the Leader or person presiding at a meeting, to 

consider whether television and sound recordings,  broadcastings or other 
reporting of all or any part of a meeting is disruptive to the extent that it should 
cease, each case being considered on its merits. 

 
20. In consultation with either the Leader and/or any other Member that the Head of 

Paid Service at his/her discretion deems appropriate, to respond to consultation 
papers. 

 
21. To attest the Council seal and sign any document necessary to give effect to: 
 

a) a resolution of the Council (as the case may be); and/or 
b) the exercise of a power or function delegated by the Council, (as the 

case may be),  
 
provided that any such attestation or signing accords with the provisions of  
Article 13 of the Constitution (as may be amended from time to time). 

 
22. To act as “Proper Officer” for all functions detailed in: 
 

a) Local Government Act 1972; 
b) Local Authorities (Referendum) (Petitions and Directions) (England) 

Regulations 2000; and 
c) the Constitution not otherwise specifically delegated to another Officer, 

including the power: 
 

(i) to consider and nominate in writing any other Officer to act as a 
proper officer where this is permitted by law; and  

(ii) in consultation with the Human Resources Manager to negotiate 
and approve variations to an Officers terms and conditions of 
employment, in order to facilitate the same 

 
provided that any such appointment or variations do not exceed any 
budget allocated for such a purpose. 

Page 45



V2.2  August 2016 
 

 
23. For the purpose of surveillance operations to which the Regulation of 

Investigatory Powers Act 2000 apply (or any statutory provision modifying, 
replacing or re-enacting the same), the power:  

 
a) to provisionally authorise a surveillance operation; and  
b) to further delegate the power to provisionally authorise surveillance 

operations to other Officers  
 

provided that such provisional authorisation is only given in accordance 
with the Council’s adopted policy. 

 
24. To authorise the making of an application under the Crime and Disorder Act of 

Anti-Social Behaviour Orders in consultation with the Senior Solicitor. 
 
25. In consultation with the Regulatory Services Manager, the power to authorise 

the giving of an authorisation under section 30 of the Anti Social Behaviour Act 
2003. 

 
26. In consultation with the Leader, to consider and approve or refuse (with or 

without modification) drafting amendments to the Community Strategy produced 
for the purposes of the Local Government Act 2000 or any policy document 
produced for the purposes of the Planning Acts which in the opinion of the Head 
of Paid Service is of a minor nature provided that any amendment shall be 
reported to the next available meeting of the Full Council. 

 
27. Power to appoint and authorise officers to act under section 29(5)(a) and (b) of  

the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. 
 
28. Power to provisionally authorise covert surveillance and the use of covert 

human intelligence sources under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
2000 provided the same is in accordance with the above legislation, any 
guidance and Codes of Practice and the Council’s adopted policy. 

 
29. Ombudsman Complaints 
 
 Power to authorise complaint/ombudsman compensation for up to £2,000, 

subject to prior consultation with the Leader or Deputy Leader. 
 
 Members 
 
30. To receive Group nominations for relevant Committees and Sub-Committees 

subject to Council being notified of the Group appointments. 
 
31. For the purposes of Members’ Approved Duties, to consider and determine 

Members’ claims for travelling allowances including the power to consider and 
determine whether to authorise meetings for such purposes: 

 
a) with Government Departments or their representatives; 
b) other Government Bodies or their representatives, and 
c) meetings involving Group Leaders, including meetings with external 

organisations. 
 
32. To receive and consider notices and questions submitted by Members pursuant 

to the Constitution. 
 

Page 46



V2.2  August 2016 
 

33. To approve, in conjunction with the relevant Committee Chairman and the 
Leader, any urgent decisions required under the procedure outlined in the 
Constitution. 

 
 Development Control 
 
34. Subject to provision 35 below, to consider and determine any application 
         submitted under the Planning Acts including:- 
 

a) Applications for Planning Permission (Outline and Full) and for approval 
of Reserved Matters;  

b) Applications for Advertisement Consent;  
c) Applications for Listed Building Consent;  
d) Applications for Conservation Area Consent;  
e) Consultations by Devon County Council on county matters;  
f) Applications and consultations by Statutory Undertakers or their 

successors; 
g) Applications for a grant of planning permission subject to a new time 

limit;  
h) Applications for a non-material change to a planning permission; 
i) Applications for Certificates of Lawful Use or Development; and 
j) Applications to vary or revoke Planning Obligations or section 52/106 

Agreements. 
 
35. The exceptions to provision 34 above, which will be determined by the Plans 

Committee, are as follows: 
 
 a) Applications made by Torridge District Council; 
 b) Applications made by or relating to land owned by Members, Officers or 

any immediate family members of any Members or Officers which are 
recommended for approval; 

 c) Applications in respect of which the Development Manager receives 
within 21 days of notification of receipt of the application being first sent 
to Members a written representation from the Ward Member or a 
Member of the Plans Committee which in the opinion of the 
Development Manager contains planning reasons indicating why the 
matter should be determined by Committee; 

 d) Upon the Development Manager or Head of Paid Service exercising a 
discretion to refer the matter to the Plans Committee  

 
 Note:  For the purpose of provision 35(b) above, “immediate family” includes all 

or any of an Officer or a Member’s:- 
 
 (i) spouse or partner; 
 (ii) brother or sister; 
 (iii) son or daughter; 
 (iv) mother or father; or 
 (v) grandparents 
 
36.  Applications for non-material changes to planning permissions shall be 

determined by the Head of Paid Service subject to prior consultation with the 
Chair and/or Vice Chair of Plans Committee. 

 
37.  To exercise and determine all functions of the Council arising from the Planning 

Acts or any regulations made pursuant to them (as revoked and replaced or 
modified from time to time) which in the opinion of the Head of Paid Service can 
reasonably be regarded as ancillary to the process of determining applications 

Page 47



V2.2  August 2016 
 

made pursuant to the Planning Acts, including in particular (but without 
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing): 

 
 a) the determination of whether an environmental impact assessment is 

required in relation to an application; 
 b) the determination of any scoping or screening opinion in relation to 

environmental impact assessments; 
 c) whether and what additional information is required in respect of an 

application;  
 d) whether any matters which would normally be reserved matters should 

be required as part of an outline application; 
 e) to determine when to place an application (whether previously deferred 

by any Committee or otherwise) on an agenda; 
 f) to determine whether to refer an application to the Secretary of State as    

a departure from the Development Plan; 
 g) to determine whether or not to decline to determine an application 

submitted within two years of a previous submission dismissed on 
appeal;  

 h) to seek the securing of  the withdrawal of applications outstanding for a 
period in excess of one calendar year; 

 i) to refuse requests for deferment by any party if the Head of Paid Service 
is satisfied that there is sufficient information available for the matter to 
be determined;  

 j)  to approve requests for deferment of an application; and 
 k) to determine sign and issue decision notices. 
 
38.  To consider and determine any matter arising in respect of the Council’s 

planning function (including the power to issue and serve any approval, 
consent, notice or other document relating to the same), including in particular, 
but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing: 

 
 a) the approval or refusal (with or without modification) of footpath 

diversions/extinguishments; 
 b) consultation responses to Forestry Authority matters; 
 c) whether to issue a Building Preservation Notice; 
 d) whether to make a direction for the purposes of Article 4 of the Town 

and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995; 
 e) the exercise of all the Council’s powers in relation to the Hedgerow 

Regulations 1997 (as may be amended from time to time); 
 f) determinations in respect of telecommunication applications pursuant to 

the Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 
1995 (as amended from time to time); 

 g) determinations in respect of agricultural and forestry buildings and 
operations Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development 
Order 1995 (as amended from time to time); 

 h) the making of recommendations to a neighbouring planning authority 
when consulted on an application; 

 i)  the determination of circular 18/84 applications; 
 j) whether to require and the content of a planning obligation for the 

purposes of an application under the Planning Acts; 
 k) whether to approve an application for variation or revocation of a 

planning obligation; 
 l) whether to approve demolitions pursuant to the Town and Country 

Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995 (as amended 
from time to time); 

Page 48



V2.2  August 2016 
 

 m) whether to exercise such rights of entry as are available to Officers or 
others as the Head of Paid Service may authorise so far as is permitted 
by the Planning Acts; 

 n) the determination of whether or not to grant consent for overhead lines; 
 o) the determination of the appropriate course of action, and to undertake 

all actions relating to, any appeal arising under the Planning Acts or 
otherwise in connection with Council’s planning functions; 

 p) to determine whether or not to issue notices, and arrange for the 
removal or obliteration of illegal advertisements, placards or posters (so 
far as permissible by law), including power to designate Officers as 
“authorised Officers” for such purposes. 

 
39.  To investigate and determine whether or not to issue and serve any notice 

which in the opinion of the Head of Paid Service is appropriate in order to 
regulate planning breaches (including conditions attached to any permissions or 
consents) pursuant to the Planning Acts, including in particular but without 
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing: 

 
  a) Requisitions for Information and Planning Contravention Notices; 
     b) Enforcement Notices (including those relating to listed buildings and 

conservation areas); 
  c) Breach of Condition Notices; 
  d) section 215 Notices;  
    e) repairs notices pursuant to the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas ) Act 1990 (as amended from time to time); 
  f) Stop Notices; and 
  g) notices relating to Tree Preservation Orders, 
 
40.  To authorise the instigation of prosecution proceedings or such other action as 

in the opinion of the Head of Paid Service is appropriate in order to regulate 
planning breaches pursuant to the Planning Acts, including in particular but 
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing: 

 
     a) non-compliance with any notices issued pursuant to provision 29   

above; 
  b) unauthorised advertisements; 
  c) unauthorised works to listed buildings; and 
  d) unauthorised works to trees. 
 
41.  To respond to notifications from the Forestry Commission in respect of 

Woodland Grant Schemes and similar programmes and applications for tree 
felling licences. 

 
42.  Determination of applications for consent under an order under Section 198 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to the cutting down, topping, lopping 
or felling of trees. 

 
43.  Granting of permission for the erection of temporary direction signs by motoring 

organisations. 
 
44.  Determination of what constitutes a county matter. 
 
45.  Serving of notices under Sections 3 and 54 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 

and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in respect of works for the preservation of 
listed buildings. 

 
46.  To determine whether to make a Tree Preservation Order. 

Page 49



V2.2  August 2016 
 

 
47.  Responding to notifications from the Caravan and Camping Club, or other 

certified organisations, under the provisions of the Control and Development of 
Caravan Site Acts 1960 in respect of (5 Caravan) Certified Sites. 

 
48.  Collection of Planning fees in accordance with the relevant regulations and 

Government Guidance. 
 
49.  Determination of applications for conservation grants to assist the 

enhancement/restoration of Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas or other 
buildings and areas of importance in accordance with approved initiatives. 

 
50.  Responding to consultations by Devon County Council relating to public 

footpaths. 
 
51.  Determination of applications for a Certificate of Appropriate Alternative 

Development under Section 17 of the Land Compensation Act 1961. 
 
52.  To accept and agree amendments to submitted applications. 
 
   Community Planning 
 
53.  To prepare Planning Policy documents to meet the requirements of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 including: 
 
  a) The preparation and consultation on draft local development schemes or 

 amendments to such schemes; 
  b) The identification, scoping and progression of evidence gathering 

 requirements; 
  c) The agreement of briefs or project specifications for detailed study once 

 the project is included in the approved work programme; 
  d) The preparation of draft options reports, development plan documents 

 and supplementary planning documents and other planning policy 
 guidance as required for consultation and to undertake the appropriate 
 consultation necessary to commission strategic environmental 
 assessment, sustainability appraisal and other similar exercises as 
 appropriate on relevant local development documents and other 
 supporting policy documents; 

  e) The preparation for public examination, including the engagement of 
 specialist advice as required; and 

  f) The printing and publishing of adopted local development  documents. 
 
54.  Subject to the limits imposed by the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and in 

consultation with the Chair of the Council’s Community and Resources  
Committee to negotiate and authorise the release of funds from the affordable 
housing capital fund to enable the delivery of approved affordable housing 
schemes across the District. 

 
 
B3 STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER 
 

General 
 
1. To act as the officer appointed under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 

1972 and to maintain and enforce the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract 
Procedure Rules. 

 

Page 50



V2.2  August 2016 
 

2. For the purposes of any budget or establishment resource within the control of 
the Statutory Finance Officer, the power to exercise all those delegated powers 
as are delegated to the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Managers. 

   
3. To undertake any roles, actions or measures, including power to consider and 

determine any matter, allocated to the Statutory Finance Officer within the 
Constitution whether specifically identified in the delegated powers to Officers 
or otherwise. 

 
4. In respect of any proceedings and in consultation with the Senior Solicitor, to 

consider and determine whether the Council should lodge a formal offer with 
the Court the amount of any such offer and whether, and upon what grounds, it 
may be appropriate for such amount to be varied. 

 
5. To administer and implement the Council Tax Support Scheme and 

Exceptional Hardship Policy adopted from time to time by the Council including 
the power to approve or refuse claims and make decisions and consider 
appeals as required or allowed by the Scheme and Policy, in accordance with 
the relevant primary and secondary legislation applicable at the time. 
 

6. The power to review a decision as to whether compensation is payable and 
amount of any compensation so payable under relevant legislation. 

 
7. Consultation with the Lead Members for Revenues and Benefits to make 

amendments to the Council Tax Reduction Policy to take account of 
typographical issues and further changes in law, Government guidance or 
policy. 

 
Financial 

 
8. In consultation with the Senior Solicitor, to consider and determine whether to 

authorise: 
 

a) the instigation of bankruptcy proceedings against an individual(s); and/or 
b) the winding up of an organisation. 

 
9. To write off Council Tax debts, National Non-Domestic Rates, sundry debts  

and overpayments of Housing Benefits to the limits set out in the Financial 
Procedure Rules. 

 
10. In consultation with the member(s) in whose ward the debtor is located and/or 

the debt originated, to write off Council Tax debts, National Non-Domestic 
Rates, sundry debts and overpayments of Housing Benefits. 

 
 Accountancy 
 
11. To be responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in 

accordance with proper practices. 
 
12. To implement annual awards affecting wages, salaries and conditions of 

service. 
 
13. The investment and re-investment of Council monies provided the same is 

undertaken in accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules and any other 
relevant policies as may be adopted by the Council in respect of the same (as 
amended from time to time). 

 

Page 51



V2.2  August 2016 
 

14. To borrow and raise loans on behalf of the Council provided the same is 
undertaken in accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules and any other 
relevant policies as may be adopted by the Council in respect of the same (as 
amended from time to time). 

 
15. To make a determination on the amount of useable capital receipts to be used 

to finance capital expenditure or for such other purpose as allowed by 
Regulations made under the Local Government Act 2003 as amended by the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007: 

 
16. To undertake any roles, actions or measures, including power to consider and 

determine any matter, allocated to the Strategic Manager (Resources) within 
the Constitution whether specifically identified in the delegated powers to 
Officers or otherwise. 

 
17. To plan and manage the Council’s cash flow requirements within approved 

borrowing limits and in accordance with the Council’s policies on treasury 
management and to manage the budgets of the Council in accordance with 
accepted practice and professional guidance. 

 
18. To consider and determine whether the Council should opt to tax any property 

for the purposes of VAT to preserve the interests of the Council and manage 
and account for the VAT implications of the Council’s activities. 

 
19. To authorise payments of precepts to precepting bodies within the area of the 

Council. 
 
20. To authorise payment of levies properly issued on the Council by levying 

bodies. 
 
21. To monitor and administer ongoing requirements for insurance provision in the 

light of changing services and assets, ensuring provision of adequate cover 
directly or via contractors’ cover. 

 
22. To liaise with the Council’s insurers and their properly nominated 

representatives in respect of any claims brought against the Council under any 
of the Council’s insurance policies and to undertake those activities necessary, 
in conjunction with the insurers and/or their representatives to resolve or settle 
those claims, including the signature of any documents incidental to the 
resolution or resettlement of any claim. 

 
23. To advance duly authorised loans to third parties. 
 
24. To take action to recover loan repayments due to the Council. 
 
25. To commence repossession action proceedings, in consultation with the Senior 

Solicitor. 
 
26. To declare Interest rates under the Housing Act 1985 or any statute replacing it 

and other interest rates appropriate to a class of loan. 
 
Exchequer 

 
27. To administer the provision of car loans and associated financial procedures in 

accordance with the Council’s car loan scheme. 
 

Page 52



V2.2  August 2016 
 

28. Administer the processing of authorised instructions and make payments in 
respect of payroll costs and allowances to staff and Members.  

 
29. Process authorised instruction and make payment in respect of supplies of 

goods services etc., and refunds of sums due to customers.  
 
B4 MONITORING OFFICER 
 

General 
 
1. For the purposes of any budget or establishment resource within the control of 

the Monitoring Officer, the power to exercise all those delegated powers as are 
delegated to the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Managers. 

 
2. To undertake any roles, actions or measures, including power to consider and 

determine any matter, allocated to the Monitoring Officer within the Constitution 
whether specifically identified in the delegated powers to Officers or otherwise. 

 
3. Power to deal with, consider and determine complaints regarding the conduct of 

District and Parish Councillors, including the power to make recommendations 
to Committees and Full Council, the power to consult with an Independent 
Person and the power to refer a complaint to the Standards Committee. 

 
4.        To authorise in writing any Officer: 
 

a) to act as a witness; or 
b) to represent the Council; 
 
in any actual or potential legal proceedings whether instigated by or on behalf of 
the Council or otherwise, in relation to any matter in which the Council is, has 
been, or may become involved, whether directly or indirectly.    

 
5. To act as the qualified person for the purposed of the Freedom of Information 

Act 2000 and any instrument made thereunder. 
 
6. To act as the Council’s Data Protection Officer under the Data Protection Act 

1998. 
  
 Establishment  
 
7. In consultation with  the Human Resources Manager to negotiate and approve 

variations to an Officers terms and conditions of employment for the purposes 
of appointing one or more Deputy Monitoring Officers, subject to any such 
variations not exceeding any budget allocated for such a purpose. 

 
 Dispensations 
 
8. Following consultation with the Chair and/or Vice Chair of the Standards 

Committee and an Independent Person, to determine requests for 
dispensations under section 33 of the Localism Act 2011, if the requests are 
justified by reference to one of the following conditions:  

  
a) that so many members of the decision-making body have an interest 

preventing participation that it would ‘impede the transaction of the 
business’; or 

Page 53



V2.2  August 2016 
 

b) that without the dispensation, the representation of different political 
groups on the decision-making body would be so upset as to alter the 
outcome of any vote on the matter.  

 
 
B5 SENIOR SOLICITOR AND STRATEGIC MANAGERS 
 

General 
 

1. The responsibility for:- 
 

a) ensuring that any duty placed on the Senior Solicitor or a Strategic 
Manager in any policy adopted by the Council is implemented in respect 
of their Service Area  and the functions undertaken by it; 

b) for the accountability and control of staff and security, custody and 
control of all other resources including plant, buildings, materials, cash 
and stores appertaining to their Service Area; and 

c) the day to day management of the Service Area of the Senior Solicitor 
or a Strategic Manager and its personnel in accordance with any 
approved Council policies as have been adopted, and relate to the 
same. 

 
2. To generate reports relating to the functions undertaken by the Service Area of 

the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Manager, in consultation with such other units / 
Officers as the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Manager deems appropriate and 
ensuring compliance with any Council policies in this regard. 

 
3. The power for the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Managers, to act on behalf of any 

Service Area and the Council, including the exercise of any powers delegated 
to them, when instructed to do so in connection with any matter for which that 
Service Area has power, including engaging in correspondence, negotiations or 
any other action that is necessary to fulfil that instruction. 

 
4. To investigate and resolve complaints (whether made through the formal 
 Council complaint procedure or otherwise) relating to the functions of the 
 Service Area, provided that: 
 

a) details of the complaint and any resolution are recorded on a central 
record in accordance with the Council’s complaints procedure;  

b) where a resolution of a complaint outside of the Council’s formal 
complaint procedure (as amended from time to time) involves the 
payment or waiving of money then the same can be met without any 
increase to Service Area’s existing budget and the prior consent of the 
Statutory Finance Officer is secured; and   

c) where a complaint is received using the Council’s complaint’s procedure 
(as amended from time to time), then all relevant provisions contained 
therein are complied with. 

 
5. To undertake any roles, actions or measures, including power to consider and 

determine any matter, allocated to the Senior Solicitor or Strategic Managers 
within the Constitution whether specifically identified in the delegated powers to 
Officers or otherwise. 

 
6. To consider and determine whether to issue a formal caution in respect of any 

matter for which the  a Strategic Manager has a delegated power to consider, 
authorise or approve the taking of criminal proceedings (or an alternative to the 
instigation of such proceedings), provided that prior to any such determination 

Page 54



V2.2  August 2016 
 

full regard must be had to any guidance that may be issued for the benefit of 
crown prosecutors in relation to the same, and that in the event of any doubt the  
Strategic Manager consults with the Senior Solicitor. 

 
7. The responsibility for the monitoring, storage, archiving and destruction of 
 Council documentation resulting from or held by their Service Area provided the 
 same is in accordance with Council policies. 
 

Financial 
 
8. To authorise the ordering of goods and services and payment in respect of the 

same in relation to the functions administered by the Service Area, provided 
the same does not exceed overall budgetary provisions for the Service Area 
and is in accordance with any policies adopted by the Council relating to the 
same. 

 
9. Provided that it is in accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules, authorise 

instructions for  
 

a) the raising of customer accounts; 
b) to cancel customer accounts; and 
c) to make recommendations to the Statutory Finance Officer regarding the 

write off of customer accounts in respect of any functions of the Service 
Area. 

 
Establishment 

 
10. To authorise any other Officer within the Service Area of the Senior Solicitor or 

a Strategic Manager to discharge a power delegated to the Senior Solicitor or a 
Strategic Manager on his/her behalf, subject to such authorisations being in 
writing and registered with the Senior Solicitor unless it is specifically stated 
that the power may not be delegated. 

 
11. To authorise Officers and any other persons (including inspectors appointed on 

behalf of the Council) to carry out inspections and to exercise powers of entry 
for any purpose which in the opinion of the Senior Solicitor or a Strategic 
Manager is reasonably necessary for the performance of a delegated or 
referred power or duty. 

 
B6 STRATEGIC MANAGER (RESOURCES)  
 

Revenues and Benefits 
 
1. To administer, operate and collect the Council Tax and National Non-Domestic 

rates schemes, including the granting of exemptions, discounts, disabled 
banding reductions in accordance with current legislation and guidelines. 

 
2. To administer and implement the Housing Benefit and Council Tax benefit 

schemes, including the exercise of any discretion on behalf of the Council in 
respect of the same, all in accordance with relevant primary and secondary 
legislation applicable at the time and such Council policies and strategies as 
may be in place from time to time. 

 
3. To represent the Council at meetings called to discuss the potential bankruptcy 

of an individual third party or the liquidation of a company/limited partnership 
etc. 

 

Page 55



V2.2  August 2016 
 

4. To approve or refuse applications for mandatory rate relief under Section 43(6) 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as may be amended or re-enacted 
from time to time), subject to details of approvals being reported to the 
appropriate Area Committee for information only. 

 
5. To approve or refuse claims for a reduction in Council Tax due as a 

consequence of the statutory provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 (or as may be amended or re-enacted from time to time). 

 
6. To determine rate relief applications from district wide organisations under the 

statutory provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, and the Local 
Government and Rating Act 1997 and to determine rate relief applications 
under the Rating (Former Agricultural Premises and Rural Shops) Act 2001. 

 
7. To represent the Council in the Magistrates Court on all applications associated 

with debt recovery to include Liability Orders and Committal proceedings in 
respect of Council tax and Non Domestic Rates. 

 
8. To administer the Discretionary Housing Payment Scheme and to make 

decisions in respect of applications. 
 
9. To administer formal cautions for offences relating to housing benefit and 

council tax benefit fraud, in consultation with the Solicitor. 
 
10. To offer administrative penalties as an alternative to prosecution for housing 

benefit and council tax fraud cases. 
 
11. To instigate, defend, attend at, represent and take further action as deemed 

appropriate in respect of housing benefit and/or council tax benefit appeal. 
 
12. To select and appoint bailiffs for recovery of debt in accordance with the 

Financial and Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
13. To sign, issue and serve completion notices under section17 Local   

Government Act 1992 or any statutory amendment or re-enactment thereof. 
 
14. To administer the invoicing of customers and recovery of sums due. 
 
15. To authorise writing-off customer invoices, subject to the amount to be written 

off in respect of one customer not exceeding the limits set under the Financial 
Procedure Rules. 

 
16. To take any applicable recovery action in respect of outstanding sums due to 

the Council including, subject to approval of the Senior Solicitor, appearing in 
the County Court before a District Judge. 

 
17.  The power to agree valuations and arrangements for payment for the purposes 

of the clawback agreement contained within the contract/transfer of the Council 
Housing stock to Westward Housing subject to consultation with the Asset 
Management Working Group or any replacement thereof. 

 
18. Subject to consultation with the Leader/Deputy Leader the power to take a 

decision as to whether as asset is an asset of community value and a decision 
on whether compensation is payable and the amount of any compensation so 
payable under relevant legislation. 

 

Page 56



V2.2  August 2016 
 

19. Power to authorise covert surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence 
sources under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 provided the 
same is in accordance with the above legislation, any relevant guidance and 
Code of Practice and the Council’s adopted policy. 

 
 Housing 
 
20. To consider and determine all matters arising under Part VI and Part VII of the 

Housing Act 1996 including in particular, but without prejudice to the generality 
of the foregoing the determination: 

 
a) as to whether a person is a qualifying tenant; 
b) under any housing allocation scheme adopted by the Council from time 

to time; 
c) as to whether a person should be removed from the Housing Waiting 

list;  
d) of allocations (including nominations) of residential properties to 

persons; and 
e) of homelessness applications, reviews and other determinations to be 

made in relation to persons purporting to be homeless. 
 
 21.     To negotiate private sector leasing schemes with private landlords and to 

instruct the Senior Solicitor to prepare such documentation as may be 
necessary to give effect to those agreed schemes.                                                                                            

 
22. The power to execute on behalf of the Council agreements relating to 

occupation of Council homeless accommodation 
 
23. The power to award grants and loans for the purpose of preventing 

homelessness and for providing local welfare support up to and including a 
value of £3,000 subject to the same being within budget and being in 
compliance with adopted policies. 

 
24. The power to award grants and loans for the purpose of preventing 

homelessness and for providing local welfare support for a value of between 
£3,000 and up to and including a value of £5,000 subject to the same being 
within budget and in compliance with adopted policies and subject also to prior 
consultation with the Statutory Finance Officer and the appropriate Lead 
Member. 

 
25. To consider and accept or refuse offers of re-purchase and determine 

applications for consent pursuant to covenants imposed on right to buy sales 
under the Housing Act 1985 (as amended).   

 
26. To consider and determine applications for postponement of the council’s 

discount charge on properties purchased under the right to buy scheme 
contained in the Housing Act 1985 (as amended). 

 
B7 HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 
1. To appoint Authorised Officers, Authorised Persons, Enforcement Officers and 

Inspectors of the Council necessary for the discharge of the functions, powers 
and duties contained or referred to in the legislation specified below.  

 
2. To authorise all duly appointed Authorised Officers, Authorised Persons, 

Enforcement Officers and Inspectors to carry out inspections and to exercise 
powers of entry and other powers necessary for the effective discharge of the 

Page 57



V2.2  August 2016 
 

said functions, powers and duties, on being satisfied on matters upon which the 
Council is obliged to be satisfied and that all statutory requirements are fulfilled. 

 
3. To take whatever action s/he deems appropriate, including the power of entry, 

taking such action as may be permitted or required, service of notices, issuing, 
granting, refusing,varying, cancelling, suspending and revoking of consents, 
permits, authorisations, approvals, licences and registrations and carrying out 
works in default and issue requests and service of requisitions for information in 
respect of all functions, powers and duties specified under the following 
legislation.  

 
4. To consider representations in relation to 'minded to' notices and to review 

'deferred action' notices. 
 
5. To consider and determine whether to issue a formal caution in relation to any 

criminal matter for which the Head of Paid Service has an express or implied 
delegated power. 

 
6. For the avoidance of doubt where provided for by the legislation specified below 

the Head of Paid Service and any other Officer(s) appointed by him/her shall be 
appointed as an authorised officer and/or Inspector for the purposes of that 
legislation.  

 
7. To manage and administer the Northam Burrows Country Park. 
 
8. Where the Head of Paid Service considers it appropriate and after consultation 

with the Senior Solicitor to prosecute any offences under the said legislation.  
 
9. Power to authorise covert surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence 

sources under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 provided the 
same is in accordance with the above legislation, any relevant guidance and 
Code of Practice and the Council’s adopted policy. 

 
 Legislation 

  

Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 

Animal Welfare Act 2006 

Animals Act 1971 

Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003 

Bovine and Bovine Products (Trade) Regulations 1998 

Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 

Breeding of Dogs Act 1991 

Building Act 1984 

Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 

Caravan Sites Act 1968 

Cinemas Act 1985 

Civil Contingencies Act 2004 

Clean Air Act 1993 

Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 

Control of Pollution Act 1974 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

Dangerous Dogs Act 1991 

Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 

Deer Act 1991 

Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996 

European Communities Act 1972 

Page 58



V2.2  August 2016 
 

Environment Act 1995 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 

Food and Environmental Protection Act 1985 

Food Safety Act 1990 

Gambling Act 2005 

Health Act 2006 

Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 

House to House Collections Act 1939 

Hypnotism Act 1952 

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 

Licensing Act 2003 

Live Music Act 2012 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

Merchant Shipping (Vessels in Commercial Use for Sport or Pleasure) 
Regulations 1993 – 2000 

Mobile Homes Act 1983 

Motor Salvage Operators Regulations 2002 

Noise Act 1996 

Offices Shops and Railway Premises Act 1963 

Pet Animals Act 1951 

Police Act 1997 

Police Factories etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

Pollution Prevention and Control (England and Wales) Regulations 2000 

Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 

Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 

Private Water Supplies Regulations 1991 

Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 

Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 

Public Health (Infectious Diseases) Regulations 1988 

Public Health Act 1936 – 1961 

Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907 

Road Safety Act 2006 

Riding Establishments Act 1964 and 1971 

Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 

Sunday Entertainments Act 1932 

Sunday Trading Act 1994 

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 

Vehicles (Crime) Act 2001 

Water Industry Act 1991 

Water Industry Act 1991 

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 

 
Building Control 

 
11. To consider, determine and issue all Decisions and Notices arising under the 

Building Act 1984 and any building regulations insofar as they relate to the 
function of Building Control. 

 
12. To serve such Notices or take such action as is considered appropriate under 

the Highways Act 1980 in so far as such provisions relate to public safety or the 
condition of buildings or land. 

 

Page 59



V2.2  August 2016 
 

13. To relax or dispense with Building Regulations approvals and to sign and issue 
such decisions. 

 
14. To withdraw Building Regulation approvals not exercised within three years. To 

refer to the Magistrates’ Court, Notices under Section 77 of the Building Act 
1984 requiring dangerous buildings to be made safe, and to take, or instruct 
emergency action under the provisions of Section 78 of the Building Act 1984. 

 
15. To carry out, or instruct contractors to carry out, works in default of a Court 

Order obtained pursuant to Section 77 of the Building Act 1984. 
 
16. To instruct the Senior Solicitor to institute proceedings for infringement of the 

Building Act 1984, Highways Act 1980 or any Regulations made thereunder. 
 
17. To serve Notice requiring removal or alteration of work not conforming with the 

Building Regulations (Section 36 of the Building Act 1984). 
 
18. To issue Demolition Notices in respect of works falling within Section 80 of the 

Building Act 1984 and to sign and issue such Notices. 
 
19. To issue Notices under Sections 24, 71 and 72 of the Building Act 1984, 

requiring adequate entrances, exits and means of escape in case of fire in 
appropriate buildings. 

 
20. To serve Notices under Section 79 of the Building Act 1984 relating to ruinous 

and dilapidated buildings. 
 
21. To appoint Consulting Engineers in accordance with the Financial Procedure 

Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
22. To set Building Regulation fees, in consultation with the Strategic Manager 

(Resources).  
 
23. To serve requisitions for information under s16 Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and to instruct the Senior Solicitor to 
prosecute for any non-compliance with the same. 

 
24. To exercise all rights of entry on to land or buildings given to the Council under 

any legislation for the purposes of exercising any functions under the Building 
Act 1984, the Highways Act 1980 and any regulation made under either. 

  
Housing 

 
25. To appoint Authorised Officers, Authorised Persons, Enforcement Officers and 

Inspectors of the Council necessary for the discharge of the functions, powers 
and duties contained or referred to in the legislation specified below.  

 
26. To authorise all duly appointed Authorised Officers, Authorised Persons, 

Enforcement Officers and Inspectors to carry out inspections and to exercise 
powers of entry and other powers necessary for the effective discharge of the 
said functions, powers and duties, on being satisfied on matters upon which the 
Council is obliged to be satisfied and that all statutory requirements are fulfilled. 

 
27. To take whatever action s/he deems appropriate, including the power of entry, 

taking such action as may be permitted or required, service of notices, issuing, 
granting, varying, revoking, cancelling, refusing, and suspending of consents, 
permits, authorisations, approvals, licences and registrations and carrying out 

Page 60



V2.2  August 2016 
 

works in default and issue requests and service of requisitions for information in 
respect of all functions, powers and duties specified under the following 
legislation. 

 
Legislation 

 

Title of Act Relevant Part  

Building Act 1984 Sections 59, 76, 79, 95, 96, 97 and 99 

Energy Act 2012  

Environmental Protection Act 
1990 

Sections. 79, 80 and 81 
Schedule 3, para 2 

Home Energy Conservation Act 
1995 

 

Housing Grants Construction and 
Regeneration Act 1996 

Chapters I, II, III and IV 

Regulatory Reform Order 2002 Paragraphs 1 to 12 and Schedules 1 to 6 

Housing Acts 1985 and 1996  

Housing Act 2004 Parts 1 to 6  

Housing and Regeneration Act 
2008 

Parts 1 to 3 and Schedules 

Homelessness Act 2002  

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 Sections 4, 5, 6 and 34 

Law of Property Act 1925 Part 3 

Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 

Sections 15, 16 and 33 

Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 

Sections 17 and 29 

Prevention of Damage by Pests 
Act 1949 

Sections 4, 5 and 22 

Public Health Act 1936 Sections 48, 83, 84, 275, 287, 290 and 
291 

Public Health Act 1961 Sections 17 and 74 

 
28. To manage and administer the giving of grants under the Housing Grants, 

Construction and Regeneration Act 1996, the regulatory reform (Housing 
assistance)(England and Wales) Order 2002 and the Council’s policies made 
thereunder.  

 
29. To approve such grants up to the maximum values specified within the 

Council’s policy from time to time. 
 
30. To serve such notices and take such action as the Strategic Manager 

(Services) shall deem appropriate to enforce the provisions of the Housing Act 
2004, including instructing the Senior Solicitor to take such legal action as s/he 
shall deem appropriate. 

 
31. To manage and administer a licensing system for Houses in Multiple 

Occupation as required by Part 2 of the Housing Act 2004, including the power:  
 

a) to approve or refuse applications for licences subject to such conditions 
as the Head of Paid Service shall deem appropriate; 

b) to revoke or vary any licence granted; and  
c) to take such action, including the service of Notices or the instigation of 

legal proceedings, to enforce the provisions of the licence and/or the 
Housing Act 2004. 

 

Page 61



V2.2  August 2016 
 

32. To investigate any allegations of illegal eviction and to instruct the Senior 
Solicitor to take such action as s/he shall deem appropriate. 

  
 Waste 
 
40. The power to manage, administer and operate a waste collection service in 

order to carry out the functions of the Council as Waste Collection Authority 
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, the functions or powers of the 
Council under the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978, Public Health Act 1961 
and the Civic Amenities Act 1967 and any other such legislation giving powers 
to or imposing duties on the Council to collect waste or refuse. 

 
41.  The power to manage, administer and operate a litter collection service in order 

to carry out the duties and powers under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 
and any other such legislation giving powers to or imposing duties on the 
Council to collect litter.  

 
42.  Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the power:-  
 
  a) to determine whether a place at which waste is situated is so isolated as 

 to make the cost of collection unreasonably high;  
  b) to set charges for the collection of waste whether permitted by 

 legislation; 
c) to determine whether to collect industrial waste or other waste which the 

Council has the discretion to collect under any legislation; 
d) to dispose of any waste collected in accordance with legislation;  
e) to require the use of specific receptacles for storage and collection of 

waste;  
f) to prepare a waste collection plan in accordance with legislation; 
g) to serve litter clearing notices; and  
h) to serve all notices, including Fixed Penalty Notices, and make all such 

determinations as permitted by the legislation referred to in provision 40 
and 41 above. 

 
Abandoned Vehicles 

 
43.  To exercise all powers and duties given to the Council to remove and dispose 

of abandoned and other vehicles under the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 
1978: Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and the Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act 2005.   

 
 Road Traffic and Car Parking 
 
44.  The power to manage, administer and operate the Council off-street car parks 

in accordance with the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and the Traffic 
Management Act 2004 and any other relevant legislation. 

 
45.  The power, in consultation with the appointed Lead Member with responsibility 

for Parking or the appropriate Committee Chairman, to decide whether to waive 
the requirement to pay for parking in any parking place where an organised 
event is taking place. 

 
46.  Without prejudice to the generality of provisions 44 and 45 above: 
 

a) the power to issue Penalty Charge Notices; 
b) the power to deal with representations and appeals; 
c) the power to commence proceedings for recovery of sums due; 

Page 62



V2.2  August 2016 
 

d) the power to prosecute for breaches of the Off Street Parking Places 
Order; 

e) the power to carry out any works to the off street parking places as are 
considered necessary provided such works are within existing budgets 
and comply with all relevant Council Rules; and  

f) the power to request information under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984. 

 
Street Scene 

 
47. The power to serve such notices and take such other action as are deemed 

appropriate under the Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003 and the Clean 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005, including the power to serve fixed 
penalty notices.   

 
48. The power to appoint authorised officers under the Anti-Social Behaviour, 

Crime and Policing Act 2014 following consultation with the Lead Member or 
Member Champion.  

 
49. To serve Community Protection Notices pursuant to the Anti-Social Behaviour, 

Crime and Policing Act 2014. 
 
50. To issue Fixed Penalty Notices for non-compliance with Public Spaces 

Protection Orders and Community Protection Notices pursuant to the Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 
51. Authority to establish the local threshold and procedures for the purposes of the 

Community Trigger, consistent with those established by the Safer North Devon 
Partnership or any equivalent successor body, pursuant to the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 
Harbour Undertaking 

 
52. The power to manage, operate and administer the Council’s harbour 
 undertaking in accordance with the all local and national legislation and 
 guidance. 
 
53. Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the power:- 
 

a) to admit ships and boats to the harbour; 
b) to levy such charges as the Council shall deem appropriate; 
c) to enforce the provisions of local and national legislation and byelaws 

with regard to the use of the harbour; 
d) where the Head of Paid Service  deems it appropriate, to liaise with the 

Maritime and Coastguard Agency and all other statutory bodies with 
regard to management of the harbour and the vessels using the same; 
and  

e) to manage and operate a pilotage service within the Taw Torridge 
estuary. 

 
Economic Development  

 
54. To enter into and manage contracts with external suppliers, service providers 

and professional consultants provided that the Contract Procedure Rules and 
the Financial Procedure Rules are complied with. 

 

Page 63



V2.2  August 2016 
 

55.  In conjunction with the Community Council of Devon agree awards in Torridge 
under the County Council’s Village Hall Grants Scheme.   

 
56.   Agree Councillor Community Grant awards and Town and Parish awards under 

the DCC scheme in accordance with the Grant schemes criteria in consultation 
with the Head of Paid Service. 

 
57. In consultation with the Strategic Manager (Resources), to dispose of plant and 

equipment used within the Service Area provided that the Financial and 
Contract Procedure Rules are complied with. 

 
 Culture and Leisure Services 
 
58. To manage the Council’s leisure and arts facilities. 
 
59. To agree or refuse requests for the holding of events on Council leisure facilities 

and to instruct the Senior Solicitor to prepare temporary event licences for such 
purposes. 

 
60. To undertake initiatives and promotions seeking to encourage the use of the 

Council’s leisure facilities or the promotion of sport, arts, culture and leisure 
within the Council’s District provided such promotions and initiatives fall within 
existing budgets. 

   
 
B8 SENIOR SOLICITOR  
 
1. In consultation with such other Strategic Manager as the Senior Solicitor deems 

appropriate, to instruct and use Counsel and other external professionals / 
experts / advisors in respect of any legal issues relating to the Council provided 
the same is in accordance with the Financial and Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
2. To instigate, prosecute, defend, and appear in any legal proceedings (including 

tribunals, hearings and inquiries) on behalf of the Council, together with the 
undertaking of such preliminary or further work in relation to the same as the 
Senior Solicitor deems appropriate, including in particular but without prejudice 
to the generality of the foregoing, proceedings in relation to: 

 
a) prosecutions,  
b) injunctions, 
c) possessions, 
d) appeals; and 
e) complaints 
 
subject to the Senior Solicitor applying any Council policy or other guidance in 
deciding whether to commence or defend an action. 

 
3. To prepare, issue and serve any Notices, Orders, Requisitions or other 

documents arising from or relating to the carrying out of any function of the 
Council (including the power to withdraw, vary or revoke the same (as the case 
may be)) which by virtue of any primary and/or secondary legislation the 
Council is empowered to issue and serve. 

 
4. To take such further action as the Senior Solicitor at his absolute discretion 

deems necessary for the purposes of implementing, enforcing in respect of 
breaches of, or regulating any decisions, Notices, Orders, Requisitions or other 
documents (including any conditions relating thereto) issued by or on behalf of 

Page 64



V2.2  August 2016 
 

the Council, including authority to authorise direct action, provided any costs in 
respect of the same can be met from existing budget provision. 

 
5. To consider applications for, any representations received (within any time 

period specified in respect of the same, or if none, then prior to the date when a 
determination is made) in respect of, and determine whether to grant or refuse 
(with or without modification) a road closure pursuant to the Town Police 
Clauses Act 1847, provided that where any objection is received within the 
representation period as identified above then such power shall only be 
exercised after consultation with the Member(s) within whose ward(s) the road 
closure lies. 

 
6. To make and determine whether or not to confirm (with or without modification) 

a Tree Preservation Order pursuant to the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
7. To consider and determine whether to vary and/or revoke a Tree Preservation 

Order pursuant to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
8. To make, and where no objections have been received, determine whether or 

not to confirm any bylaw for which the Council has the statutory power to issue, 
provided that where an objection has been received in respect of the matters 
herein, then determination by the Senior Solicitor can still be made, but only if: 

 
a) in the opinion of the Senior Solicitor there is an urgent need for a 

decision; and 
b) there is prior consultation as to the reason for the urgency with 

Chairman of the Committee (or Vice-Chairman if the Chairman is 
unavailable) that incorporates the function directly affected by the 
proposed decision. 

 
9. To attest the Council seal and sign any document necessary to give effect to: 
 

a) a resolution of the Council (as the case may be); and/or 
b) the exercise of a power or function delegated by the Council, (as the 

case may be), provided that any such attestation or signing accords 
with the provisions of Article 13 of the Constitution (as may be amended 
from time to time). 

 
10. Power to amend and update the Council’s corporate policy and procedures 

document on the Regulation of Investigatory powers Act 2000. 
 
11. To act as the Senior Responsible Officer under the Regulation of Investigatory 

Powers Act 2000. 
 
12. Power to authorise covert surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence 

sources under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 provided the 
same is in accordance with the above legislation, any relevant guidance and 
Code of Practice and the Council’s adopted policy. 

 
13. Power to amend, update and vary the Council’s Freedom of Information Act 

2000 publication schedule and charging policy. 
 
14. The power to review a decision as to whether an asset is an asset of 

community value. 
 
 

Page 65



V2.2  August 2016 
 

Ombudsman Complaints 
 
15. Power to authorise complaint/ombudsman compensation for up to £2,000, 

subject to prior consultation with the Leader or Deputy Leader. 
 
 Human Resources 
 
16. To deliver advice and guidance to officers in relation to terms and conditions of 

employment. 
 
17. To interpret employment policies, custom and practice and implement 

processes and/or decisions based on either the policy or the custom and 
practice of the Council. 

 
18. To act on the advice of medical practitioners with regard to retiring employees 

on grounds of ill health. 
 
19. To negotiate revised terms and conditions of employment with recognised 

trades unions. 
 
20. To develop employment policies and negotiate with recognised trades unions 

prior to adoption by Council. 
 
21. To purchase procurement of Personnel consultants/training providers as 

necessary within the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. 
22. To apply employment legislation/EC Directives as appropriate which may 

impact on staff terms and conditions, including pay. 
 
23. To implement procedures in relation to training and development activities. 
 
24. To act as the lead countersignatory for the Council and nominate other 

countersignatories for the Council in respect of the Disclosure and Barring 
Service. 

 
25. To negotiate compromise agreements subject to consultation with the Head of 

Paid Service and Monitoring Officer as appropriate, with the final agreement to 
be signed off by the Senior Solicitor. 

 
26. To seek external employment advice within budget as necessary. 
 
27. To place job adverts in appropriate publications. 
 
28 To approve relocation expenses as appropriate. 
 
29. To approve interview expenses. 
 
30. To advise the Council and act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to 

the recruitment and termination of employees. 
 
31. To execute the agreements for the engagement of Officers. 
 

Audit 
 
32.  The maintenance of an effective internal audit function 
 

Page 66



V2.2  August 2016 
 

33. To provide an independent and objective opinion on the internal control 
environment put in place by the Council in accordance with the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2011 and the relevant CIPFA guidance. 

 
34. Authority to enter any Council premises at all reasonable times, to have access 

to all records, assets, personnel and documents relating to financial and other 
transactions of the Council and require any Council employee to produce such 
documentation or property under their control for the purpose of carrying out the 
Audit function 

 
35. To conduct an independent investigation into any referrals of suggested or 

potential irregularities and to take such steps as are necessary by way of 
investigation and report. 

 
36. To provide an annual audit opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s system 

of internal control. 
 
37. To provide an independent and objective Annual Audit opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment in accordance with 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 and the relevant CIPFA guidance. 
 

38. To report to all senior management, the Head of Paid Service and the Audit 
Governance Committee on all aspects of risk management, control and 
governance processes and to deliver an audit opinion on those matters. 
 

39. Authority to enter any Council premises at all reasonable times, to have access 
to all records, assets, personnel and documents relating to financial and other 
transactions of the Council and require any Council employee to produce such 
documentation or property under their control for the purpose of carrying out the 
audit function 
 

40. To conduct an independent investigation into any referrals of suggested or 
 potential irregularities and to take such steps as are necessary by way of 
 investigation and report. 
 

Corporate Property and Procurement 
 
41. To carry out the Council’s statutory functions as Street Naming and Numbering 

Authority in accordance with section 19 of the Public Health Act 1925 and 
sections 21, 64 and 65 of the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847. 

 
42. To authorise assignments of Leases where such assignments, under the terms 

of the existing Lease, might not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
43. To refuse applications to purchase Council land and/or buildings if the 

application is contrary to an adopted Council policy. 
 
44. To agree the change of use of shops owned by the Council (subject always to 

compliance with planning legislation) where for the purposes of good 
management such a change is justified. 

 
45. To determine applications and set charges for temporary access over Council 

land and to determine applications for temporary licences for use of Council 
land. 

 
46. To determine applications for Wayleave Agreements, licences and Easements 

across Council land. 

Page 67



V2.2  August 2016 
 

 
47. To acquire areas of land where the consideration is less than £3,000 and 

provided a budget exists for the purchase. 
 
48. To issue and renew annual Licences. 
 
49. To set charges for new and existing Licences. 
 
50. To dispose of land, whether on a freehold or leasehold interest, up to a value of 

£5,000 consideration or £1,000 per annum rental except where in the opinion of 
the Statutory Finance Officer the land is considered to be of significance to the 
Council’s land holding portfolio or appears to be a key piece of land in relation 
to any adjoining development potential. 

 
51. To consider and determine all rent reviews and lease renewals. 
 
52. To refer rent reviews to third party determination if no agreement is made. 
 
53. To serve such Notices as are necessary to be served under Landlord and 

Tenant legislation or otherwise in accordance with the property management 
function. 

 
54. To undertake the roles in relation to asset management as may be identified in 

the Asset Management Plan (as may be amended from time to time). 
 
55. To accept surrenders of interests in Council owned land and or buildings. 
 
56. For the avoidance of doubt, the above powers shall be exercisable by the 

Statutory Finance Officer in respect of land even if delegated power in respect 
of that land has been given to another officer. 

 
57. To carry out the Council’s functions as Land Drainage Authority in accordance 

with the Land Drainage Act 1991 and subsequent amendments. 
 
58. To carry out the Council’s functions as Maritime District Council in accordance 

with the Coast Protection Act 1949 and subsequent amendments. 
 
59. To manage and administer the Council’s procurement systems. 
 
60. To manage and administer the Caddsdown Business Park including:-  
 

a) Instructing the Senior Solicitor to prepare tenancy agreements in respect 
of the same;  

  b) Taking such action to regain possession of any part of the Business 
 Park as shall be deemed appropriate by the Special Projects Manager in 
 consultation with the Senior Solicitor; 

  c) Authorising assignments of leases at the Business Park where such 
 assignments, under the terms of the existing lease, might not be 
 unreasonably withheld; 

  d) Serving such Notices as are necessary to be served under Landlord and 
 Tenant legislation or otherwise in accordance with the property 
 management function above; and 

  e) To accept surrenders of interests in Council owned land and or buildings 
 at Caddsdown Business Park.   

Page 68



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor
To: Full Council
Subject: Substitution Scheme
Date: 15 May 2017

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To approve the Council’s Substitution Scheme

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Substitution 
Scheme each year at the Annual General Meeting

2. REPORT

If the Substitution Scheme is not approved then it shall cease to have effect.

The current Substitution Scheme precludes substitutions to the Standards Committee. 
A meeting of the Standards Committee held on 21 December 2016, recommended that 
substitutes be allowed provided the Member had undertaken the relevant training.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Substitution 
Scheme each year

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Substitution 
Scheme each year

Page 69

Agenda Item 15



Ward Member and Lead Member Views
N/A

4. CONCLUSIONS

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve the Substitution 
Scheme each year at the Annual General Meeting

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

Approve the Substitution Scheme as set-out in Appendix 1.

 

Page 70



A4.5 Substitution Scheme

This procedure rule shall be subject to review at each Annual Meeting of the Council 
and shall cease to apply unless the Council resolves it shall continue.

Any Member of the Council may act as a substitute for another Member at any 
meeting of a committee (or other body constituted by the Council or its committees), 
subject to the following rules:

a) Overview & Scrutiny Committee members may not substitute on the Community & 
Resources Committee.

b) Community & Resources Committee members may not substitute on any 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

c) Substitution can take place on to the Standards Committee provided the substitute 
Member had undertaken the appropriate training.

d) A Member may act as a substitute at a meeting of any outside body to which the 
Council nominates or appoints Members (provided that the rules of that body so 
permit). In such a case the substitute need not be a member of the same political 
group as the member being replaced provided the substitution is agreed and notified 
by the political group to which the member being replaced belongs.

e) In the case of substitution to the Plans or Licensing Committees the substitute 
must be a member agreed by the Head of Paid Service to be competent by training 
or qualification to take part in the committees work.

f) A substitute may only act when an appointed Member of the Council, committee or 
one of the bodies named above is not in attendance at the start of the meeting and 
the substitution shall last for that meeting only, not substitute midway through.

g) A substitute member will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary member 
of the committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers or duties 
exercisable (for example a Chairman’s responsibility) by the person they are 
substituting.

h) Before the start of any meeting at which a substitute is acting, the substitute shall 
notify the Committee Clerk of the substitution or, in the case of an outside body, shall 
arrange to conform with that body’s requirements.

i) At the start of any meeting at which a substitution has been arranged in 
accordance with these rules, the Committee Clerk shall announce that the named 
substitute is acting to serve as a substitute for the named absent member.

j) If the absent Member is subsequently able to attend a meeting for which a 
substitute is acting, but arrives after the meeting has opened and the announcement 
has been made in paragraph i) above, he shall be treated as a non-member of the 
committee for that meeting only.

Page 71



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor
To: Full Council
Subject: Membership of Outside Bodies
Date: 15 May 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To agree the Membership of Outside Bodies

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve (or delegate to 
Group Leaders to agree) the Members serving on Outside Bodies each year at the Annual 
General Meeting

2. REPORT

The current membership on Outside Bodies is attached for Members information at 
Appendix 1.  

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that this is agreed each year

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
n/a

Page 72

Agenda Item 16



4. CONCLUSIONS

Members are asked to either agree the membership on Outside Bodies or delegate to Group 
Leaders to agree.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to either:

 Agree the membership on Outside Bodies, or
 Delegate to Group Leaders to agree the membership on Outside Bodies

 

Page 73



                                              Appendix 1

Membership of Community Groups & Outside Bodies
AGM 2016

Organisation
No of 
reps

Current 
Council Representative

Notes

Appledore Festival 1 Kenny Davis

Bideford Community Archive Council
1 Peter Christie

Biosphere 1 Alison Boyle

Burton Art Gallery Forum

4 Peter Christie
Alison Boyle
David Brenton
John Langton-Lockton

Coastal & Market Towns Initiative –           
Holsworthy

1 Peter Watson

Bude Canal Trust 1 Ken James

Coastal & Market Towns Initiative –          
Torrington

1 Philip Hackett

County (Locality) Committee 2 Jane Whittaker
Phil Pennington

Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership (Safer North Devon)

2 Betty Boundy
Robin Julian

Devon & Cornwall Housing 
Association (Sanctuary Road  
project)

1 Ken James

Devon & Cornwall Housing 
Association (Ayres Close project)

1 Dermot McGeough

Devon & Cornwall Housing 
Association – Regional Committee

1 Cathrine Simmons

Devon Districts Forum 1 Jane Whittaker

Devon Waste Management 
Committee

1 James Morrish

Great Torrington Community 
Development Trust

1

Harbour Bideford
(Homeless Charity)

1 Gaston Dezart

HATOC
(joint meeting with DCC)

2 David Brenton
Richard Wiseman

Holsworthy Children’s Care Advisory 
Board (Wef March 2012)

1 Ken James

Holsworthy Memorial Hall 
Management Committee

2

Westward Housing 1 David Brenton

Lundy Marine Conservation Zone 
Advisory Group

2 Anna Dart
Alison Boyle

Taw & Torridge Voluntary Services
TTVS

1 Jane Whittaker

North Devon Coast & Countryside & 
North Devon AONB core funding 
group 

1

Page 74



North Devon +
2 John Himan

Philip Hackett

PEEP Project
3 David Hurley

Richard Hancock
David Brenton

Police & Crime Panel
1 Betty Boundy

Tarka Rail Association
1 Kenny Davis

South West Coastpath Forum
1 Simon Inch

South West Museums, Libraries and 
Archives Council

1 Peter Christie

Bideford Bay Childrens’ Centre
1 David Brenton

Torridge Homestart 1 Trevor Johns

Torridge, North Devon, Mid Devon 
and Bude CAB

1 John Himan

Torrington Care Forum
1 Margaret Brown

 

Page 75



REPORT OF Head of Paid Service
To: Full Council
Subject: Lead Members
Date: 15 May 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To approve Lead Members

1. INTRODUCTION

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve Lead Members 
each year at the Annual General Meeting

2. REPORT

To assist Full Council in agreeing the Lead Members for 2017/18, the current Lead Members 
are:

Lead Member for: Councillor

Economy John Himan

Community Culture & Leisure Richard Wiseman

Environment Vacancy

Health & Wellbeing/Community 
Safety Betty Boundy

Planning & Development Peter Watson

Internal Resources Philip Hackett

Customer Services David Hurley

Democratic Support Sam Robinson

Housing Cathrine Simmons

Waste & Recycling James Morrish

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve Lead Members

Financial Implications
None

Page 76

Agenda Item 17



Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve Lead Members.

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
N/A

4. CONCLUSIONS

It is a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that Full Council approve Lead Members 
each year at the Annual General Meeting

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

Approve the following Lead Member roles and to appoint Lead Members for 2017/18

Lead Member for: Councillor

Economy

Community Culture & Leisure

Environment

Health & Wellbeing/Community 
Safety

Planning & Development

Internal Resources

Customer Services

Democratic Support

Housing

Waste & Recycling

Page 77



REPORT OF Planning Manager
To: Annual General Meeting
Subject: Welcombe Parish Neighbourhood Area Designation 
Date: 15th May 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To confirm the designation of Welcombe Civil Parish as a Neighbourhood 
Area under Section 61G of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 

1. INTRODUCTION
Welcombe Parish Council has applied to Torridge District Council to formally designate the entirety 
of Welcombe Civil Parish as a ‘Neighbourhood Area’; the designation of a neighbourhood area 
being the first step in the process of preparing a Neighbourhood Development Plan (commonly 
referred to as a Neighbourhood Plan). This report sets out the process of designating the 
Neighbourhood Area, which is a requirement on the Council and neighbourhood plan preparation, in 
relation to which the Council has a duty to provide support. 

2. BACKGROUND
The Localism Act 2011 introduced legislation that has provided local communities more power to 
plan for the future of their areas, offering them the opportunity to prepare Neighbourhood Plans and 
Neighbourhood Development Orders. Once made (the term for their adoption) Neighbourhood 
Plans carry full weight as part of the statutory Development Plan for the area, from which due regard 
must be had when making decisions on planning applications.

The legislative framework governing the preparation of Neighbourhood Development Plans is set 
out in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) along with a series of subordinate 
regulations. The power to designate a Neighbourhood Area being conveyed to local planning 
authorities under Section 61G of the Town and County Planning Act 1990, as amended. 

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 came into force on 1st April 2012 and set 
out the steps that must be achieved in order to progress the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan. 
The first formal step towards the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan is the designation of a 
Neighbourhood Area, which is achieved through the application of a qualifying body to the relevant 
local planning authority.

A  ‘qualifying body’ is defined by legislation; comprising parish councils and others capable of being, 
or already designated as ‘neighbourhood forums’ in areas that are not governed by parish councils; 
with neighbourhood forums required to be designated by the local authority. A parish council, as a 
‘relevant body’ under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (Section 61G), is able to submit a 
neighbourhood area application to the local planning authority. 

Prior to 1st October 2016, under the regulations detailed above1, the local planning authority was 
obliged to publicise any application for the designation of a neighbourhood area as soon as possible 
after receipt, to those living, working and doing business in the parish and invite comment on the 
proposal for a specified period. In doing so, the local planning authority was also obliged to 
determine the application within a set period, moving to designate the area unless there were 
justified reasons not to do so.

From 1st October 2016 amended regulations were introduced that simplified the process of 
neighbourhood area designation to expedite the process. The amended regulations introduced a 
streamlined process2 for applications where:

1 Regulations 6 and 6A of The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, as amended.
2 Regulation 5A of The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, as amended.

Page 78

Agenda Item 18



1. the qualifying body is a parish council;
2. the proposed area consists the whole of the parish council’s area; and
3. if any part of the specified area is part of an existing neighbourhood area, none of that 

existing neighbourhood area extends outside of the parish council’s area. 

In such circumstances, where the received application is determined to be valid the local planning 
authority is explicitly directed to exercise its powers to designate the specified area as a 
neighbourhood area. As such, if a qualifying application meeting these requirements is submitted to 
a local planning authority, then it has no choice but to designate the area. In streamlining the 
process of Neighbourhood Area designation it is clear that the Government expect Councils to 
respond expeditiously to confirm designations which are subject to a valid application. 

3. WELCOMBE NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA DESIGNATION
Welcombe Parish Council formally submitted an application to this Council, in the form of a letter 
dated 22nd February 2017 (Appendix 1), seeking the designation of the entirety of the Civil Parish of 
Welcombe as a Neighbourhood Area. 

The application is considered to be duly made, comprising all of the information necessary to meet 
the requirements prescribed within the regulations, namely: 

 a map which identifies the area to which the area application relates, 
 a statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be designated as a 

neighbourhood area; and
 a statement that the Parish Council is a relevant body for the purposes of the related 

legislation.

The application is also considered to conform with the requirements of Regulation 5A that enable 
the simplified process for consideration of applications to be followed, in that the application is:

 from Welcombe Parish Council, a qualifying parish council;
 the area specified within the application consists of the whole of the Civil Parish of 

Welcombe, which comprises the whole of the parish council’s area; and
 no part of the area specified in the application is currently part of a neighbourhood area 

which extends outside of the parish council’s area.

On this basis, Regulation 5A(2) of The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
dictates that the Council must exercise its powers under Section 61G of the 1990 Act and designate 
the specified area as a neighbourhood area. The Council is afforded no discretion in this process 
and has no opportunity to deviate from designation if a valid application is received. On this basis, it 
is recommended (Recommendation 1) that the area contiguous with that of Welcombe Civil Parish 
(Appendix 2) is designated as a Neighbourhood Area in accordance with Section 61G of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended. 

Consequences of Neighbourhood Area Designation
Designation of a Neighbourhood Area is the first step in the preparation of a Neighbourhood 
Development Plan. Once the Neighbourhood Area is designated, the next stage is for the town/ 
parish council to engage with their communities and prepare the Neighbourhood Plan. The process 
requires at least one formal 6 week consultation period on the draft Plan. Assistance from the 
District Council with this process may be required, and the Council is obligated to provide such in 
accordance with a ‘duty of care and support’. However, the Localism Act makes it clear that the 
preparation of Neighbourhood Plans should be led by parish/ town councils in consultation with their 
communities.

Once drafted, a Neighbourhood Plan will be submitted to the District Council who will carry out a 
check to ensure that it has been prepared correctly and meets the right basic standards. The District 

Page 79



Council will then undertake a further 6 week consultation, following which the District Council will 
facilitate and fund an independent examination into the Neighbourhood Plan. Providing that the 
Examiner recommends that the Neighbourhood Plan is appropriate to be taken forward then a 
referendum will be called for which the District Council will be responsible for facilitating and 
funding. The Neighbourhood Plan requires the support of the majority of those who vote in the 
referendum in order to be taken forward.

If the referendum indicates community support, the Neighbourhood Plan will normally then be 
adopted or ‘made’ by the District Council, becoming part of the statutory Development Plan against 
which relevant planning applications will be determined. The District Council and other decision 
makers are then obliged, by law, to take the Neighbourhood Plan into account when considering 
proposals for development in the subject area.

4. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations require the District Council to confirm valid 
applications that seek the designation of Neighbourhood Areas. 

It is a statutory requirement to support the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans and for this Council 
to adopt, or ‘make’ them, if supported by the referendum. Failure to support Welcombe Parish 
Council to prepare a Neighbourhood Plan could result in legal challenge with any subsequent 
consequences for the Council.

The Council is legally required through the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and associated 
subordinate regulations to consider and determine applications for the designation of 
neighbourhood areas. In the case of this application, the legislation requires that the Council 
designate the area specified in the application.

Financial Implications
The costs associated with designating the Neighbourhood Area can be met within existing Local 
Plan budgets. No budgetary provision is however in place to support the preparation of a 
Neighbourhood Plan, which as a minimum will include the cost of the examination and referendum, 
with additional costs, not including officer time, being required to be met in relation to the 
administration of the process. 

Financial support is available from Central Government to support local planning authorities with 
their neighbourhood planning obligations. For the 2017/2018 financial year, local planning 
authorities can claim £20,000 from Government for each Neighbourhood Plan, payable once a date 
is set for a referendum on a draft Plan following a successful examination. The Council is also 
currently able to claim an additional £5,000 from Government on the successful designation of each 
of the first five Neighbourhood Areas within a local planning authority area. The designation of 
Welcombe Civil Parish as a Neighbourhood Area would be the fourth of such designations within 
Torridge, following the previous designation of the parishes of Great Torrington, Bradworthy and 
Winkleigh.

It is not possible to precisely estimate the cost that likely to be incurred by a local planning authority 
to support the preparation of a particular Neighbourhood Plan. This is because the costs of the 
examination are linked directly to its duration which will relate to the complexity of the 
Neighbourhood Plan. Equally, the costs associated to the referendum will relate to the size of the 
local community within the Neighbourhood Area. 

Based upon experience elsewhere, the costs to a local planning authority associated to the 
examination of a Neighbourhood Plan for could be expected to be in the region of £5,000-£10,000, 
dependant upon the complexity of the Plan and the scale of the issues covered. 

Page 80



The costs associated to the holding of the referendum can be estimated more readily. The Elections 
team estimate that the cost associated to running a referendum for the Welcombe Neighbourhood 
Plan is likely to be in the order of £1,500.

Subject to no significant future change to the level of grant funding available from Government to 
support local planning authorities neighbourhood planning responsibilities, it is likely that the level of 
grant that can be claimed in relation to the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan for Welcombe, will 
broadly cover the level of anticipated expenditure incurred to meet the Council’s prescribed 
responsibilities.

Human Resources Implications
The local planning authority has a duty to support communities making their Neighbourhood 
Plan(s): through the consideration of applications for the designation of Neighbourhood Areas,  
provision of advice and guidance, making evidence available, checking that the plan meets certain 
basic conditions and through the funding and organisation of the independent examination and 
referendum. The requirements of supporting the Neighbourhood Plan process will require staff 
resource from both Planning and Democratic Services, the explicit tasks relating to which are not 
included in current business plans. 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
The development of a Neighbourhood Plan by a local community will need to comply with the 
provisions of national planning policy which is founded on the principles of sustainable 
development. As such, the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan for Welcombe should provide an 
opportunity for the advancement of sustainability. 

Equality/Diversity
Neighbourhood Plans, through a democratic process of consultation and referendum, provide an 
opportunity for all sectors of the local community to have a say in the future development of their 
area.

Risk Management
There are no direct risk implications arising form the designation of the Welcombe Neighbourhood 
Area. A service level agreement between the District Council and Welcombe Parish Council would 
usefully aid the management of the delivery process of the Neighbourhood Plan. At this time the 
District Council have no established protocol in respect of the level of resource it will provide in 
support of the Neighbourhood Plan process.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
There are no implications arising from this report. One of the basic conditions, which a 
Neighbourhood Plan must meet, is that it is in general conformity with the strategic policies 
contained in the local development plan.

Ward Members and Lead Member Views
Cllr Dart (Member for Hartland and Bradworthy) – I am pleased to support the application for the 
designation of Welcombe as a Neighbourhood Area, from which I believed the preparation of a 
Neighbourhood Plan will be beneficial for the parish.

Cllr Watson (Lead Member for Planning) – Gives supports to the Parish Council’s application, with 
the recognition that the District Council are obliged to confirm the designation of Welcombe Parish 
as a Neighbourhood Area.

6. CONCLUSIONS
The Welcombe Neighbourhood Area application has triggered the obligation, in accordance with 
Regulation 5A(2) of The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, for the Council to 
designate the Civil Parish of Welcombe as a Neighbourhood Area. As such, it is recommended that 

Page 81



the area of Welcombe Civil Parish is designated as a Neighbourhood Area in accordance with 
Section 61G of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

7. RECOMMENDATION

The Council are requested to consider the following recommendation:
1.    That Welcombe Civil Parish (as outlined on the map at Appendix 1 to this report) be designated 

as a Neighbourhood Area in accordance with Section 61G of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation – 5th April 2017
Members Consulted – Lead Member for Planning

 Ward Member for Welcombe
Officers Consulted -  Head of Paid Service 

 Solicitor 
 Strategic Manager (Resources) 

Contact Officer(s): David Green, Planning Manager/ Dawn Burgess/Ian Rowland, Senior 
Planning Policy Officers

Background Papers:
The Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended; available at: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents 

Localism Act 2011; available at: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents 

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012; as amended: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents/made

The Neighbourhood Planning (General)(Amendment) Regulations 2015; 
available at: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/20/made 

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) and Development Management 
Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2012; available at: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/873/contents/made

Chief Planning Officer Letter from CLG: Update on financial support for 
neighbourhood planning in 2017 to 2018; available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-guidance-letters-to-chief-
planning-officers 

Page 82

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/20/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/873/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-guidance-letters-to-chief-planning-officers
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-guidance-letters-to-chief-planning-officers


WELCOMBE PARISH COUNCIL 
Paula Ellison, Parish Clerk, Ash House, Welcombe, Bideford, Devon, EX39 6HH 

Tel: 01288 331732 Email: t5ange@yahoo.co.uk 

Mr. D. Green 
Planning Manager 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
EX39 2QG 

22nd February 2017 

Dear Mr Green 

Re: Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012: 
Application for Designation of a Neighbourhood Area: Welcombe 

Under the relevant legislation as set out in the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, 
Welcombe Parish Council, being a 'relevant body' as defined in Section 61(G) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, wishes to prepare a Neighbourhood Development Plan. 

As required by Regulations of the Regulations, this Application for Designation of a Neighbourhood 
Area is accompanied by the following: 

• A map which identifies the area to which the area application relates 
• A statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be designated as a 

neighbourhood area 
• A statement that the organisation or body making the area application is a relevant body for 

the purposes of section 61G of the 1990 Act 

The Neighbourhood Area as identified on the encl i sed map is the whole of the civil 
parish of Bradworthy as outlined in green 

We consider the defined area to be appropriate for designation for the following reasons: 

1. The area includes the entire area in the a~ministrative jurisdiction of Welcombe Parish Area 
which serves the community of Welcombe 

2. This area has an existing sense of commu ity which the Parish wishes to cultivate in the 
creation of a Plan to meet the present an future needs of residents, businesses and 
organisations. 

3. The Parish wish to get the Plan in place so that our residents can feel secure that whilst the 
surrounding countryside is being protectel::I their family will still be able to afford to live in the 
area. The Parish also want to put a unique emphasis on employment and training needs with 
a strong focus on agriculture and tourism. 

4. The Parish proposes to establish a steering group to enable the residents and interested 
parties with the opportunity to contributd and have their say in finding ways to address 

pressures that any future development inf he area may create. 
s. The Parish Council will work alongside Tor idge District Council (which has a 'duty to 

support') and its residents and stakehold r s from all parts of the Parish and will progress on 

Page 83



a transparent and 'open door' basis so that the community can observe and become 
involved at any time. 

6. The area has been the subject of recent community-led and District Council led planning 
exercises involving local consultation including 

• The Parish Plan of 2005 

• Consultation on the North Devon and Torridge Local Plan 

For the purposes of section 61(G) of the 1990 Act this letter is our statement 

Yours sincerely 

Chair, Welcombe Parish Council 

Page 84



Proposed Neighbourhood Area Designation
Welcombe Civil Parish
© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100022736
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form. Scale 1:30000

22/02/2017

Boundary of proposed
Neighbourhood Area

P
age 85



1

Torridge District Council
External Overview & Scrutiny

ANNUAL REPORT
2016/2017

Page 86

Agenda Item 19



2

Membership of the Committee

Chair Councillor S Inch

Vice Chair Councillor P Pennington

Councillors A Boyle
A Dart
R Darch
A Eastman
T Johns
I Parker
A Whittle

Non-elected representatives Mr P W Topham 
Mr D Mason

Supporting the Committee Jamie Hollis, Senior Solicitor
Sean Kearney, Commercial & Leisure Services Manager 
Mary Richards, Democratic Services Officer

The Role of External Overview & Scrutiny   
The Council has two Overview & Scrutiny Committees, an External Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee and an Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

The Overview & Scrutiny Committees have the power to review the policies of the Council 
and its objectives, and are entitled to ‘call in’ decisions made by the Community & 
Resources Committee which are not yet implemented.  They can also recommend that the 
Community & Resources Committee reconsider such decisions. Issues that remain 
unresolved will be referred to the Full Council for determination.

The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee scrutinises the performance of external public 
sector bodies operating within Torridge.

The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee is also the Council’s Crime and Disorder 
Committee.

The Council remains committed to its current policy of involving the community in its 
decision making process and includes community representation on both Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees.

Page 87



3

Introduction by the Chair

I am very pleased to be able to present the Annual Report on the work of the External 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee during 2016/2017.

It has been an interesting year for the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee and we 
have looked at a range of issues which are of interest to, or impact upon, the lives of local 
residents.  We have engaged with a wide variety of local organisations and people, 
including the blue light emergency services, the voluntary sector and other public bodies to 
improve services to, and the well being of, our community.  Calling on experts from within 
the Council as well as from external bodies has provided a pool of knowledge which has 
been a real benefit and ensures that the Committee is well informed to make 
recommendations. 

Again, this year, the External Overview and Scrutiny Committee continued its work 
scrutinising the NHS during a time of considerable transformation and we have been well 
supported by the Lead Member for Health Well Being/Community Safety.

Looking forward, I hope that the work of this Committee will be complemented by the 
findings and recommendations of the LGA Peer Challenge.  We will continue to strive 
towards improving local services, providing greater transparency and delivering better 
value for money to the residents of Torridge.

I would like to conclude by thanking our elected and independent members on the 
Committee who have been very active in leading and presenting on specific topics; the 
Lead Member for Health Well Being/Community Safety for her regular updates; and our 
officers who have been excellent in providing reports, information and insight in to the many 
issues which have come before our Committee.  

Kind regards

Simon Inch
Councillor Simon Inch
Chair – External Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 88



4

 

   A look back at 2016/2017

Councillor S Inch, Chair, and Councillor P Pennington, Vice Chair saw another year in 
office and there were 2 changes to Committee Membership part way through the municipal 
year.  Finally, at the end of the year, the Committee welcomed a new non-elected member, 
Mr David Mason.

A restructure of the Forward Plan was introduced, grouping items into themes and a 
Working Group was set up with internal Overview & Scrutiny to review grants given to 
external organisations.

In September 2016, the Committee approved the introduction of a public speaking scheme 
at its meetings to allow members of the public a greater opportunity to participate and be 
involved in the Committee’s work.

The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee has looked at a number of issues across a 
range of Council services and the services provided by external organisations.

Highlights of this year’s scrutiny:

TDC Community Safety Partnership

The new Community Safety & Public Health Officer was introduced to the 
Committee and he gave an overview of the Community Safety Partnership, was 
set up to tackle issues including alcohol & drug abuse, domestic abuse & sexual 
violence; re-offending; anti-social behaviour and protection of the most vulnerable. 

The Partnership was made up of representatives from the local Police Force, the local 
councils (Torridge and |North Devon as well as County), the Fire Authority, Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and voluntary organisations, the fire and police service, Devon 
County Council, North Devon Council and Torridge District Council.   These organisations 
worked together to develop and implement strategies to protect the local communities from 
crime and to help people feel safe. 

The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee looked forward to receiving further updates.

Health, Well Being And Social Care 

A regular item on the agenda, this topic was one which prompted lively 
debate on numerous occasions, particularly in relation to the Success 
Regime, the reduction in hospital services, the closure of beds, support 
infrastructure, ambulance response times and greater involvement of TDC in 
the NHS consultation programme.

Page 89

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/14986/Safer-North-Devon
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiI8fLyoY7LAhVGUBQKHbLwBpQQjRwIBw&url=http://www.stalbans.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/decisionmaking/committees/overviewandscrutiny.aspx&psig=AFQjCNGm5prj-kU0vztkXd_-948f6RMA-Q&ust=1456329775786328


5

A Task and Finish Working Group was formed with the purpose of formulating questions to 
put to the CCG, Health & Well Being Board and NDHCT and later in the year a lengthy 
debate took place in relation to the letter and attached documents received from Dr Tim 
Burke.  The Committee planned to:

 Become involved in the Clinical Review Groups taking place within the National 
Health Service at an early stage.

 attend a joint meeting with North Devon Council and that Dr Burke; Lead Chief 
Executive for the Success Regime and Senior Colleagues be invited also.

Health, Well Being and Social Care will continue to be an important standing item on the 
agenda.

Water Quality And Flood Risk

The Environment Agency Flood Risk Team and Devon County Council 
Flood & Coastal Risk Team both attended meetings and delivered 
informative presentations which allowed the Committee to better 
understand the issues facing the region.  The Environment Agency 6 
year capital investment plan was well received.

The Lead Member for the Environment was gathering information to provide an evidence 
based argument to present to South West Water and it had been agreed that the Torridge 
MP and the North Devon MP should be involved.

There were ongoing issues in respect of sewerage.  Consequently, this item would remain 
on the Forward Plan for further scrutiny and a report to all Councillors would follow.

Citizens Advice Bureau

The Chief Executive of the North, Mid & West Devon Citizens Advice Bureau 
gave an update to the Committee on case statistics and trends. Information 
was provided on how the funding from Torridge District Council had been 
spent.  

The Committee acknowledged the services provided by the CAB and how 
important this was to members of our community.

South West Ambulance Service Trust

The Committee heard from the Head of Operations for the West 
Division and the Operations Manager for ambulance services 
across North Devon and the details they provided had been very 

informative, giving the Committee a better insight into the problems 
the service faced.  Information was given about the fleet and crews and the voluntary 
support from the BASICS Scheme which provided a network of trained specialists.

Page 90

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwik3O-QjI7LAhWMWhQKHUtMCJwQjRwIBw&url=http://www.horshamvoluntaryaction.org/horsham-citizens-advice-bureau-volunteer-recruitment-evening/&psig=AFQjCNHW-U_mpi_d-gkzt4tJkt5Y2KgNgw&ust=1456324056275274


6

North Devon Biosphere Reserve

The Committee had the pleasure of being addressed by Mr A 
Bell, Manager, North Devon Biosphere Service.  His presentation 
covered all aspects of the Biosphere from marine and woodland 

projects to ecotourism.   The Biosphere Reserve partnership has delivered an extensive 
range of environmental improvement projects since the designation was made.  

It was noted that the North Devon Biosphere Reserve was considering charitable status. 

North Devon AONB

The Committee was informed of the projects and priorities for the 
North Devon AONB.  The presentation incorporated information 
on funding, AONB Management Plan, the Sustainable 
Development Fund, AONB and Planning and Performance 
Indicators 2015-16.

The organisation was now engaging with schools and the 
importance of this cooperation was appreciated.

The primary purpose of the AONB “to conserve and enhance natural beauty” had to be 
balanced against needs of agriculture, forestry and rural industries as well as the economic 
and social needs of local communities.

Other items 

Tourist Information Groups

An introductory review of tourism had been undertaken and the importance of tourism to 
the economy and the need to invest more in tourism had been discussed.

Evaluation Of Impact – Partner Survey 2016

Mr P Topham, Independent Non-elected Member, had presented his final report, which had 
involved a survey of ten organisations who partner with Torridge District Council (TDC) in 
the provision of services to its residents.

The main themes identified were partners’ generally positive relationship with the 
Committee; the importance of being able to explain their work; the importance of the 
Committee as a conduit between partners and community; their commitment to achieving 
value for money in the services they provide; a desire to work more closely with the 
Council.

The review concluded that the findings of the survey be considered for action or further 
enquiry.

Joint Meeting Of Internal and External Overview & Scrutiny Committees

A joint working group had been set up.

Page 91


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	2b - 6.3.17 Minutes
	Minutes


	10 Size of Committees and Terms of Reference
	10a Terms of Reference

	11 Allocation of seats to Political Groups
	12 Membership of Committees
	12a  Appendix 1

	14 Scheme of Delegation
	14a Part 3 - Chapter 2 Officer delegation

	15 Substitution Scheme
	15a Appendix 1

	16 Membership of Outside Bodies
	16a Appendix 1

	17 Lead Members
	18 Welcombe Parish Neighbourhood Area Designation
	18a Appendix 1- Application for Designation of a Neighbourhood Area - Welcombe

	19 External Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Annual Report

